Public Document Pack

Penalita House, Ty Penallta, ‘
Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

¥strad Mynach, ¥strad Mynach, c A E R P"' '. LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG EUNOOR BWRDEISTIREE SINGE

CAERFIFILY
-~

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud &'r agenda hwn cysylltwch & Sharon Hughes
(Rhif Ffén: 01443 864281 Ebost: hughesj@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 15 Mehefin 2022

| bwy bynnag a fynno wybod,

Cynhelir cyfarfod aml-leoliad o'r Pwyllgor Craffu Tai ac Adfywio yn Nhy Penallta, a thrwy Microsoft
Teams ar Dydd Mawrth, 21ain Mehefin, 2022 am 5.30 pm i ystyried y materion a gynhwysir yn yr
agenda canlynol. Gall Cynghorwyr ac aelodau'r cyhoedd sy’n dymuno siarad ar unrhyw eitem wneud
hynny drwy wneud cais i'r Cadeirydd. Mae hefyd croeso i chi ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, mae
angen o leiaf 3 diwrnod gwaith o rybudd os byddwch chi'n dymuno gwneud y naill neu'r llall. Bydd
gwasanaeth cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais.

Gall aelodau'r Cyhoedd neu'r Wasg fynychu'n bersonol yn Nhy Penallta neu gallant weld y cyfarfod yn fyw
drwy'r ddolen ganlynol: live via the following link: https://civico.net/caerphilly

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ffrydio'n fyw a bydd recordiad ar gael i'w weld drwy wefan y Cyngor, ac
eithrio trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr
unigolion sy'n siarad ar gael yn gyhoeddus i bawb drwy wefan y Cyngor: www.caerffili.gov.uk

Yr eiddoch yn gywir,

Christina Harrhy
PRIF WEITHREDWR

AGENDA

Tudalennau

1 | dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

|| ||||III|||!||[_I:‘,

ay be inany > Af = o g @
ﬂdencem Y y mguage Or format et

| Gallwch ohebu mewn unrhyw iaith neu ffor™



https://civico.net/caerphilly
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/

Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb.

Atgoffi't Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol &
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr
a Swyddogion.

I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:-

3

Pwyllgor Craffu Tai ac Adfywio a gynhaliwyd ar 15fed Mawrth 2022.

Ystyried unrhyw fater a gyfeiriwyd at y Pwyllgor hwn yn unol &'r drefn galw i mewn.

Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor Craffu Tai ac Adfywio.

| dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau* Cabinet canlynol:-

1. Bwrdd Adfywio — Cynigion Prosiect — 9fed Mawrth 2022;

2. Y Bwrdd Prosiect Adfywio - Cronfa Caffael Tir 9 9fed Mawrth 2022;

3. Cyfrif Refeniw Tai — Cynllun Busnes 2022/2023 — 23ain Mawrth 2022;
4. Strategaeth y Rhaglen Cymorth Tai — 23ain Mawrth 2022.

* Os oes aelod o’r Pwyllgor Craffu yn dymuno i unrhyw un o'r adroddiadau Cabinet uchod i gael eu
dwyn ymlaen ar gyfer adolygiad yn y cyfarfod, cysylltwch & Sharon Hughes, 01443 864281, erbyn
10.00 a.m. ar ddydd Llun, 20fed Mehefin 2022.

| dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau Craffu canlynol:-

7

Asesiad o Lety i Sipsiwn a Theithwyr 2022-27.
17-74

Cylchrediad:

Cynghorwyr Mrs P. Cook (Is Gadeirydd), D. Cushing, G. Ead, Mrs C. Forehead, A. Hussey, L. Jeremiah,
C.P. Mann, A. McConnell, B. Owen, L. Phipps, Mrs D. Price, J.A. Pritchard, A. Whitcombe (Cadeirydd),
S. Williams, W. Williams a J. Winslade

A Swyddogion Priodol

SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a'r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.

Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas &’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu.

Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i'r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd neu cysylltwch & Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01443 863028.



http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd

Agenda Iltem 3

N
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BORODOUGH COUINCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

HOUSING AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS ON
TUESDAY 15™ MARCH 2022 AT 5.30 P.M.
PRESENT:
Councillor J. Ridgewell - Chair
Councillor M. Adams - Vice-Chair
Councillors:

D. Cushing, R. W. Gough, L. Harding, G. Kirby, Ms P. Leonard and B. Owen.

Together with:

N. Taylor-Williams (Head of Housing), L. Allen (Principal Group Accountant - Housing),
M. Jacques (Scrutiny Officer), S. Hughes (Committee Services Officer) and M. Harris
(Committee Services Support Officer).

RECORDING ARRANGEMENTS
The Chair reminded those present that the meeting was being recorded and would be made

available to view via the Council’s website, except for discussions involving confidential or
exempt items. Click here to view.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. Bevan, C. Elsbury, A. G. Higgs,
Mrs G. D. Oliver, Mrs D. Price, Mrs M. E. Sargent, W. Williams and B. Zaplatynski.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course
of the meeting.

3. MINUTES - 15T FEBRUARY 2022
It was moved and seconded that the minutes of the meeting held on 1%t February 2022 be

approved as a correct record. By way of Microsoft Forms (and in noting there were 6 votes
for, O votes against and 1 abstention) this was agreed by the majority present.

Page 1


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Meetings,-agendas,-minutes-and-reports/Council-meetings

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee
meeting held on 1% February 2022 (minute nos. 1 - 10) be approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

MINUTES - 10™ FEBRUARY 2022

It was moved and seconded that the minutes of the special meeting held on 10" February
2022 be approved as a correct record. By way of Microsoft Forms (and in noting there
were 6 votes for, 0 votes against and 1 abstention) this was agreed by the majority present.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee
meeting held on 10" February 2022 (minute nos. 1 - 5) be approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

CALL-IN PROCEDURE

There had been no matters referred to the Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the call-
in procedure.

HOUSING AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK
PROGRAMME

The Scrutiny Officer presented the report which outlined details of the Housing and
Regeneration Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme for March 2022 and included
all reports that were identified at the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee
meeting held on 1% February 2022. Members were asked to consider the Forward Work
Programme, alongside the Cabinet Forward Work Programme, prior to publication on the
Council’s website.

Members were asked to note that there were no reports scheduled on the Forward Work
Programme for the meeting to be held on 26™ April 2022, as the meeting falls within the
pre-election period. The Head of Housing indicated that that there may be some proposed
amendments to the Forward Work Programme for the meeting to be held on the 215 June
2022 and it was noted that this would be undertaken through the Scrutiny process.

Following consideration of the report it was moved and seconded that the recommendations
be approved. By way of Microsoft Forms this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee Forward Work
Programme be published on the Councils’ website.

CABINET REPORTS

None of the Cabinet reports listed on the agenda had been called forward for discussion at
the meeting.

REPORTS OF OFFICERS

Page 2



Consideration was given to the following reports.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET MONITORING - PERIOD 9

Consideration was given to the report which informed the Scrutiny Committee of the
projected position for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for the 2021/22 financial year,
based on the income and expenditure movements of the first 9 months of the year.

The Principal Group Accountant for Housing provided the Scrutiny Committee with an
overview of the report. Members were informed that the HRA had a projected underspend
of £9.7m for the end of the 2021/22 financial year. The surplus was split between general
revenue underspends and capital related underspends and Members were asked to note
the main variances detailed in the report. A summary was also provided on section 5.7 of
the report which detailed the revenue contributions to capital outlay, in relation to the
WHQS programme.

The Principal Group Accountant for Housing referred the Scrutiny Committee to section
5.4.1 of the report and a point of correction was made in relation to the Single Source
Supplier arrangement, in that the year-end pain/gain is likely to be in the region of £100k
cost to the HRA and not £30k.

A number of queries were raised in relation to the filling of vacant posts. The Principal
Group Accountant for Housing confirmed that there were currently 53 vacant posts and it
was considered that more than half of those posts were blue collar workers. It was
explained that the number of vacant posts did contribute to the delay of the completion of
the Welsh Housing Quality Standards (WQHS) programme, along with other issues. It was
highlighted that the extended deadline to complete the WHQS programme by December
2021 had been achieved, however it has impacted on the commencement of the
maintenance through the PAMS programme. It was noted that the underspend is a result
of not being able to progress with the PAMS programme whilst the WHQS programme was
being finalised.

Further discussion took place regarding the issues in filling vacant posts, particularly where
more competitive rates are being officered in the private sector and with Registered Social
Landlord providers. In conclusion, the Head of Housing informed the Scrutiny Committee
that it is his core priority to address this issue during the coming months.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUSINESS PLAN 2022/23

Members of the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee were asked to consider
and take a view on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan 2022/23 prior to its
presentation to Cabinet on 23" March 2022, and to also recommend that Cabinet submit
this report to Council to request an extension to the borrowing cap. Members were
informed that the HRA Business Plan is an annual requirement from Welsh Government as
part of the annual submission of the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) grant application. It
was highlighted that the Business plan has not been presented for approval in recent years
but there are now an increased number of objectives to be delivered within the Business
Plan, on similar timeframes. The importance of Members being formally updated on the
financial position of the HRA investment programme on an annual basis, to inform future
decision making was emphasised.

The Head of Housing provided the Scrutiny Committee with more context to the report and
informed Members that the Business Plan is a long-term 30-year plan for managing the

Page 3



organisations assets and financing the necessary investments. Members were asked to
note that the Business Plan is reliant on a number of key assumptions which are detailed in
the report.

A gquestion was raised in relation to inflation rate predictions and the consultation that had
taken place. Officers outlined the consultation measures undertaken and advised that
typically a forecast of 2% over a 5-year period would be assumed but because of economic
volatility a higher rate over a shorter period was forecast in the plan.

In response to a query regarding the implications of the current conflict in Ukraine the
Scrutiny Committee was advised that, during these unprecedented times, it is not possible
to predict the full impact it is going to have on the supply chain. However, the Head of
Housing further advised Members that the situation is being monitored and that he was
confident the Business Plan was sustainable for now, however the strategies, focus and
priorities in the coming years will be kept under constant review.

A Member raised a question in relation to Social Landlords meeting the Welsh Housing
Quality Standard (WHQS) on all tenanted stock. The Head of Housing advised the Scrutiny
Committee that they have a strong relationship with the major Housing Association partners
and that Affordable Housing Partnership meetings take place regularly. Members also
heard how Welsh Government regulate the Housing Associations.

A number of queries were raised in relation to the competition for a skilled workforce. The
Head of Housing outlined the need to ensure that there was a policy of ongoing learning
and development across the sector. Members also heard about plans for a more robust
apprenticeship approach for a wide range of functions within the Housing Sector.

Following consideration of the report it was moved and seconded that the recommendations
be approved. By way of Microsoft Forms this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee:

(i) Acknowledged and considered the 2022/23 Housing Business Plan prior to it
being presented to Cabinet for approval on the 23 March 2022, and its
submission to WG by the 315 March 2022, and annually on an ongoing basis.

(i) Recommended that Cabinet approve the submission of the report to Council to
request an extension on the HRA borrowing cap to £90m to allow the new build
programme to progress.

Councillor J. Ridgewell announced that this would be his last meeting as Chair of the
Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee. He expressed his thanks to all for the help
and support he has received during his time as Chair and also to the Housing Team for all
their hard work.

The meeting closed at 6.15 pm.
Approved as a correct record and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and

recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 215 June 2022, they were signed by the
Chair.

CHAIR

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 5

R\
CAERPHILLY

OQUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
[ YNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

HOUSING AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
21ST JUNE 2022

SUBJECT: HOUSING AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To report the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee Forward Work
Programme.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Forward Work Programmes are essential to ensure that Scrutiny Committee agendas
reflect the strategic issues facing the Council and other priorities raised by Members,
the public or stakeholder.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That Members consider any changes and agree the final forward work programme
prior to publication.

4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 To improve the operation of scrutiny.

5. THE REPORT

5.1 The Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee forward work programme
includes all reports that were identified at the scrutiny committee meeting on Tuesday
15" March 2022. The work programme outlines the reports planned for the period
June 2022 to March 2023.

5.2 The forward Work Programme is made up of reports identified by officers and
members. Members are asked to consider the work programme alongside the

Page 5



cabinet work programme and suggest any changes before it is published on the
council website. Scrutiny committee will review this work programme at every
meeting going forward alongside any changes to the cabinet work programme or
report requests.

5.3 The Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme is
attached at Appendix 1, which presents the current status as at 30" May 2022. The
Cabinet Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2. A copy of the prioritisation

flowchart is attached at appendix 3 to assist the scrutiny committee to determine
what items should be added to the forward work programme.

54 Conclusion

The work programme is for consideration and amendment by the scrutiny committee
prior to publication on the council website.

6. ASSUMPTIONS

6.1 No assumptions are necessary.

7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1  As this report is for information only an Integrated Impact Assessment is not
necessary.

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report.

9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report.

10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been included in this report.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1 The Local Government Act 2000.

Author: Mark Jacques, Scrutiny Officer jacqum@carphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Dave Street, Corporate Director for Social Services and Housing

Mark S. Williams, Corporate Director for Economy and Environment
Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/ Monitoring Officer

Page 6



Lisa Lane, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer,
Legal Services

Councillor Andrew Whitcombe Chair of Housing and Regeneration
Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Patricia Cook Vice Chair of Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny
Committee

Appendices:

Appendix 1  Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme
Appendix 2 Cabinet Forward Work Programme

Appendix 3  Forward Work Programme Prioritisation Flowchart

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



6 obed

Forward Work Programme - Housing & Regeneration

APPENDIX 1

Date

Title

Key Issues

Author

Cabinet Member

21/06/22 17:30

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment

Local Authorities in discharging their duties under Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 are
required to produce a Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment and to make provision for
sites where the assessment identifies an unmet need for accommodation / mobile home pitches The
report will outline the findings of the GTAA that was undertaken during the latter part of 2021/22
before it is submitted to Welsh Government.

Roberts-Waite, Jane;

Clir. Cook, Shayne;

28/07/22 17:30

Car Parking Charges.

Forbes-Thompson, Cath;

Cllr. Simmonds, Julian;

13/09/22 17:30

Housing & Regeneration end of year 2021-22 DPA report

Roberts, Ros;

Clir. George, Nigel;

13/09/22 17:30

Information Item - Local Housing Strategy Delivery Plan

Roberts-Waite, Jane;

Clir. Cook, Shayne;

18/10/22 17:30

Oakdale

Roberts-Waite, Jane;

Clir. Cook, Shayne;

18/10/22 17:30

Ty Darren - 2022

Roberts-Waite, Jane;

Cllr. Cook, Shayne;

18/10/22 17:30

Low Cost Home Ownership (Decision)

The LCHO (Low Cost Home Ownership) report will document the formulation, implementation and the
publication of a new policy which governs the process by which the Council will sell homes to people
living and/or working in the borough wanting to access homeownership but cannot afford to do so
without some form of public subsidy.

Roberts-Waite, Jane;

Cllr. Cook, Shayne;

18/10/22 17:30

Updated Welsh Government Prospectus (Decision)

Taylor-Williams, Nick;

CliIr. Cook, Shayne;

29/11/22 17:30

31/01/23 17:30

14/03/23 17:30




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Cabinet Forward Work Programme — 14th June 2022

APPENDIX 2

15/06/2022
13:00

Welsh Language Standards Annual
Report 2022

For Cabinet to note the content of the annual
report and endorse the publication of the
information as a record of progress towards, and
compliance with, the relevant Welsh Language
Standards. Once approved the report will be
published on the Council's website by the
statutory deadline of 30 June 2022.

Cullinane, Anwen;

Clir. George, Nigel;

29/06/2022
13:00

Caerphilly County Borough Council
Round 2 Levelling Up Fund
Submissions

To outline the opportunities and constraints for
the Council presented by this new round of
Levelling Up funding and seek endorsement for
the submission of two constituency projects and
one Transport project under this new funding
programme by the deadline of the 6th July 2022.

Williams, Mark S;

Cllr. Pritchard, James;

29/06/2022
13:00

TT abed

Shared Prosperity fund

To update Cabinet on the UK Government Shared
Prosperity Fund as part of the UK Government’s
Levelling Up programme and seek agreement for
Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council (RCT)
to act as Lead Local Authority for the UK SPF for
the Cardiff Capital Region and submit the CCR
Investment Plan to the UK Government by the
submission deadline of 1st August 2022.

Kyte, Rhian;

Cllr. Pritchard, James;

29/06/2022
13:00

Plateau 4 Oakdale - Draft Heads of
Terms

To seek Cabinet approval to agree to the sale of
the remaining undeveloped land at Oakdale
Business Park Plateau 4 to facilitate the relocation
of an existing company to the site to
accommodate their growth and expansion plans
and retain highly skilled and well paid jobs in the
county borough.

Kyte, Rhian;

ClIr. Pritchard, James/Cllr.
George, Nigel;




Cabinet Forward Work Programme — 14th June 2022

APPENDIX 2

29/06/2022
13:00

Regeneration Project Board - Project
Proposals

To consider the allocation of £60,000 of the Non-
Community Council Community Infrastructure
Levy funding for the Penmaen Ward to the
Engineering Projects Group to implement a car
park extension at Oakdale Sports Pavilion.

Kyte, Rhian;

Cllr. Pritchard, James;

13/07/2022
13:00

Registrars (Ceremony) Fees

To consider proposed increases to locally set
statutory ceremony fees in the Registration
Service for 2022/23 on a cost recovery basis.

Hartshorn,
Robert;

Clir. Philippa Leonard;

13/07/2022
13:00

2T obed

Compliance with the minimum
energy efficiency standards fixed
penalty notice proposal

For Cabinet to agree and adopt an Enforcement
Protocol as the Council’s approach to dealing with
identified non-compliances with the MEES
Regulations, including the use of Compliance
Notices and Penalty Notices where appropriate.
The Protocol will improve the energy efficiency of
private rented sector housing whilst ensuring
landlords comply with their legal obligation under
the MEES regulation.

Taylor-Williams,
Nick;

Clir. Cook, Shayne;

13/07/2022
13:00

The Implementation of Renting
Homes Wales Act — Contracts

To update Cabinet on the Renting Homes (Wales)
Act 2016 which is new legislation the provisions of
which affect all rented homes in Wales. The Act
gives greater clarity on the rights and
responsibilities of both public and private sector
tenants and landlords through written contracts.

Taylor-Williams,
Nick;

Clir. Cook, Shayne;




Cabinet Forward Work Programme — 14th June 2022

APPENDIX 2

13/07/2022
13:00

The Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessment
(decision)

Local Authorities in discharging their duties under
Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 are
required to produce a Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessment and to make
provision for sites where the assessment identifies
an unmet need for accommodation / mobile home
pitches The report will outline the findings of the
GTAA that was undertaken during the latter part
of 2021/22 before it is submitted to Welsh
Government.

Roberts-Waite,
Jane;

Clir. Cook, Shayne;

27/07/2022
13:00

2021/22 Provisional Outturn Report

To provide Cabinet with details of the provisional
revenue budget outturn for the 2021/22 financial
year prior to the annual external audit of the
accounts by Audit Wales.

Harris, Stephen R;

Clir. Stenner, Eluned;

o1 abed

27/07/2022
13:00

Shared Ambitions Strategy 2019 —
2022.

To provide Cabinet with an update on the Shared
Ambitions Strategy 2019-2022. As part of the
Council’s self-evaluation, a review of the impact of
the Shared Ambitions Strategy has been
completed. Recommendations are included in the
new Strategy to be launched in September 2022.

Cole, Ceri;

Cllr. Andrews, Carol;

27/07/2022
13:00

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2022-2027 and
subsequent action plan has been completed and
now needs consultation and approval to submit

final report to WG.

Mutch, Sarah;

Cllr. Andrews, Carol;




Cabinet Forward Work Programme — 14th June 2022 APPENDIX 2

T abed



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES

APPENDIX 3

Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme Prioritisation

Is the issue of strategic
importance?

There is concern of poor
performance or a significant
budgetary issue has been
identified

Issue highlighted by an
Auditor, Regulator or
Inspector, which identified
areas for improvement or

Issue identified as corporate
priority or identified as
service or corporate risk

Change to Legislation or
Guidance

Evidence of public
dissatisfaction (e.g. Public
Satisfaction Survey)

fTfeetet

Is the topic timely? Will
scrutiny be able to make
recommendations?

Suitable for Scrutiny
Forward Work
Programme

Suitable as Task and Finish
group review

Unsuitable for Scrutiny
Forward Work
Programme

Page 15




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda Item 7

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

HOUSING AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
21ST JUNE 2022

SUBJECT: GYPSY AND TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT 2022-27

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To seek the views of members of the Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee on the
new Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2022-27 (GTAA) prior to its
presentation to Cabinet on 13th July 2022.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 requires local authorities to undertake an
assessment of the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers residing in or
travelling through their area, and to make provision for sites where the assessment
identifies an unmet need for mobile home pitches.

2.2 Statutory guidance has been produced by Welsh Government to enable local authorities
to discharge the first part of this duty.

2.3 Local authorities must submit their completed GTAA to Welsh Ministers for scrutinization.
Ministers will decide whether to approve or reject a GTAA. Approved GTAA reports must
be published by local authorities.

2.4  The first GTAA undertaken by the Council (2016-21), showed that there was no
requirement for either permanent or transit provision in the county borough.

2.5 A similar process used to undertake the first GTAA was used to undertake the 2022-27
GTAA. The 2022-27 GTAA was undertaken in-house by officers, with field work carried
out between July and October 2021.

2.6 The GTAA process requires an analysis of quantitative and qualitative information, which
includes interviews with member of the Gypsy and Traveller community. In total, 9
interviews were completed for the 2022-27 GTAA, which is more than the 2016-21 GTAA.

2.7 Tailored information was produced by the Council to raise awareness amongst member of
the Gypsy and Traveller community on the undertaking of the 2022-27 GTAA.

2.8  The 2022-27 GTAA identifies an unmet need for a total of 11 mobile home pitches within

Page 17



3.1

3.2

4.1

5.

the next 5 years and a total of 14 mobile home pitches over the lifetime of the Local
Development Plan. No requirement was identified of transit site provision or specific
provision for Travelling Showpeople.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the contents of this report are noted and discussed by Housing and Regeneration
Scrutiny Committee and that any amendments or clarifications are raised in advance of
the Cabinet meeting on the 13" July 2022.

Members of the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee are asked to endorse the
findings of the GTAA report.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To ensure that the Council’'s complies with the legislative duty under Part 3 of the Housing

(Wales) Act 2014.

THE REPORT

National Context

5.1

52

5.3

Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 requires local authorities to undertake an
assessment of the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers residing in or
travelling through their area, and to make provision for sites where the assessment
identifies an unmet need for mobile home pitches. Statutory guidance has been
produced by Welsh Government to enable local authorities to discharge this duty.

For the purposes of undertaking an accommodation assessment the term Gypsies and
Travellers covers:

a) Persons of a nomadic habit of life, whatever their race or origin, including:

1. persons who, on grounds only of their own or their family’s or dependant’s
educational or health needs or old age, have ceased to travel temporarily or
permanently, and

2. members of an organized group of travelling show people or circus people
(whether or not travelling together as such); and

b) All other persons with a cultural tradition of nomadism or of living in a mobile
home.

The purpose of the GTAA process is to allow local authorities to assess the
accommodation requirement of Gypsies and Travellers. The process was introduced by
Welsh Government in 2015, with the first round of assessments taking place in 2016.
GTTA must be redone at least every 5 years. In 2020, Welsh Government informed local
authorities not to undertake new assessments due to restrictions put in place to protect
public health during the Covid-19 pandemic. Local authorities are now required to submit
their new GTAA to Welsh Government by February 2022. To satisfy this requirement a
draft report has been submitted to Welsh Government pending approval of the final report
by Cabinet.

Page 18



54

Local authorities must submit their completed GTAA to Welsh Ministers for scrutinization.
Ministers will decide whether to approve or reject a GTAA. Approved GTAA reports must
be published by local authorities.

Local Context

5.5

5.6

5.7

The Council undertook its first GTAA in 2015, with a report being presented to Cabinet on
17" February 2016. The GTAA was approved by Welsh Ministers on submission. It
showed that there was no requirement for either permanent or transit provision in the
county borough.

A similar process used to undertake the 2016-21 GTAA was used to undertake the 2022-
27 GTAA. The 2022-27 GTAA was undertaken in-house by officers, in accordance with
the statutory guidance.

Information from the 2022-27 GTAA will provide an evidence base for the development of
the Council’s new replacement Local Development Plan.

Methodology Overview

5.8

59

5.10

511

5.12

5.13

A project steering group oversaw the GTAA process. This group was originally set up for
the undertaking of the 2016-21 GTAA and have met on a biannual basis since to monitor
any changes in the local situation. The group consists of representatives from Housing &
Social Services, Regeneration and Planning, Public Protection, ICT and Customer
Services, and two west Gwent community cohesion officers. Prior to the commencement
of the GTAA the Council also met with a representative from Travelling Ahead, a Welsh
project working with young people and families from Gypsy, Roma and Traveller
communities, and a representative of the Gypsy and Traveller community to discuss the
Council’s methodology for undertaking the GTAA.

Due to regulations imposed by Welsh Government to protect public health during the
pandemic no members of the Gypsy and Traveller community were invited to take part in
project group meetings. In addition, public engagement during the field work stage was
restricted in-line with the regulations at the time.

All field work was undertaken between July and October 2021. Face to face interviews
were only completed once restrictions had been relaxed sufficiently to allow them to go
ahead.

Advice was sought from the corporate Communications team in relation to raising
awareness of the undertaking of the GTAA. An A4, colour poster was produced by the
Graphic Design team and displayed at various locations throughout the borough. A
dedicated web page on the Council’s website was updated with information on the GTAA
process. The Council’s social media accounts were also used to carry information on the
undertaking of the GTAA. The Council also wrote to a range of national and regional
Gypsy and Traveller support organisations asking them for assistance in promoting the
undertaking of the GTAA amongst their service users.

3 private residential caravan / park homes sites were visited and leaflets left with the
occupants. Residents of the 3 unauthorised developments were also visited.

The assessment requires an analysis of quantitative and qualitative data. However, there
is currently a dearth in secondary data, with many Gypsies and Travellers known to be
reluctant to self-ascribe on public surveys, and due to 2011 Census data now being out of
date. Data from the 2021 Census was not available to use at the time of undertaking the

Page 19



5.14

GTAA.

Primary data was collected through interviews carried out with willing members of the
Gypsy and Traveller community using a Welsh Government prescribed form. Members of
the Gypsy and Traveller community at one of the unauthorised developments declined to
take part in the interviews. Results of the interviews are shown in summary in the
subsection below and in detail in the report.

Key Findings

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

521

Since the inception of the Council in 1996 there has been no local authority owned,
Gypsy and Traveller designated site provision in the county borough, either permanent or
transit. In addition, there are currently no privately owned sites in the county borough,
which are designated solely for Gypsy and Traveller use.

Analysis of data provided by the Environmental Health team showed that over the last 10
years on average there were 1 or 2 instances of unauthorised encampments per year
taking place on public owned land. Encampments taking place during this period typically
lasted less than 1 week and consisted of 2-3 caravans. These encampments would have
been managed by the Environmental Health team in accordance with the Council’s
protocol for managing such encampments.

There are currently 3 unauthorised developments (occupying land without the necessary
land use permission) at separate locations in the county borough. Each unauthorised
development is occupied by members of the Gypsy and Traveller community, who have
separately submitted retrospective planning permissions to regularise their status.
Should any of these applications receive approval then information provided through the
interview process shows that each site has capacity to accommodate any natural growth
from existing residents over the next 5 years.

The statutory guidance requires the Council to consider the requirement for mobile home
pitches from families living on all unauthorised developments. Therefore, the total
requirement for mobile home pitches shown in the report takes into consideration the
requirement arising from each of the 3 locations. In the event that planning permission is
refused at either of these locations then the statutory duty arising from the Housing
(Wales) Act 2014 places a requirement on the Council to make provision for sites where
the assessment identifies an unmet need for mobile home pitches. Provision could be
made either on public or privately owned land.

The 2011 Census shows that 31 people, or just 0.02% of the population in the county
borough described their ethnicity as ‘Gypsy or Irish Traveller’. Due to the relatively small
number identified by the Census, the Office of National Statistics would have used data
swapping techniques to protect people’s identity. Care needs to be taken, therefore, when
analysing this data or drawing any conclusions from it. The main report attached provides
a breakdown of this data focusing on age groups, gender, employment, qualifications,
health and household composition.

No requests were received by the Council from members of the Gypsy and Traveller
community currently living in bricks and mortar accommodation to complete a survey.
Therefore, no interviews were carried out with members of the Gypsy and Traveller
community currently living in bricks and mortar accommodation

9 interviews in total were completed with members of the Gypsy and Traveller community.

Interviews were carried out using a Welsh Government template survey. Below is a
summary of responses:

Page 20



5.22

Each respondent described their ethnicity as Roma.

The age range of respondents was 19-64.

5 respondents described their gender as female and 4 male.

The number of people per respondent household ranged from 1-5.

All respondents lived on a private site without planning permission (unauthorised

development).

All respondents said they were happy with where they currently lived.

o 5respondents had lived at their current location between 1-6 months and 4
respondents between 2-5 years.

¢ When asked how long they would stay there, all respondents said they did not intend
to move.

e All respondents said they were not planning to move into other accommodation.
1 respondents said that someone in their household was likely to move into their own
home in the next 5 years, which they indicated would be in the county borough.

¢ None of the respondents had camped by the roadside / on an unauthorised
encampment / on a transit site on Wales while travelling in the past year.

e 5 of the respondents said they think there should be more transit sites provided in
Wales and 4 said they didn’t think there should.

o When asked where the transit sites should be provided the 5 respondents said in

every local authority area in Wales.

The GTAA identified an unmet need for a total of 11 mobile home pitches within the next
5 years and a total of 14 mobile home pitches over the lifetime of the Local Development
Plan. No requirement was identified of transit site provision or specific provision for
Travelling Showpeople.

Next Steps

5.23

5.24

5.25

6.2

Subject to a Cabinet decision the approved GTAA will be submitted to Welsh Ministers for
scrutiny.

The Council will keep the findings of the GTAA under review to ensure that any emerging
needs and aspirations of Gypsies and Travellers living in or passing through the county
borough, including those people living at the 3 unauthorised developments, are taken into
consideration. This will be achieved by the continuation of the Gypsy and Traveller
accommodation working group, which will continue to meet biannually.

There is a lack of transit site provision throughout Wales, which is known to inhibit the
nomadic lifestyle of many Gypsies and Travellers. The Council is currently in discussions
with local authorities in SE Wales regarding the requirement for a regional transit site.
Future transit site provision would potentially address the lack of current provision and
reduce the number of unauthorised encampments occurring throughout the region. Any
significant developments on this matter will be reported to this committee.

ASSUMPTIONS

The GTAA is based on an analysis of quantitative and qualitative data. The unmet need
for mobile home pitches is based on information sourced from interviews with members of
the Gypsy and Traveller community.

It is not the role of the GTAA to determine or report how any unmet need identified
through this process will be met.

Page 21



7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

111

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT
An Integrated Impact Assessment has been completed and can be accessed below:
Link to Integrated Impact Assessment

The Housing (Wales) Act 2015 conveys a statutory duty on Welsh local authorities to
undertake GTAAs. The 2022-27 GTTA has been undertaken in accordance with this
guidance. The GTAA is an assessment of the accommodation needs of Gypsies and
Travellers living or travelling through the county borough at the time of its undertaking.
The GTTA does not contain any proposals or makes any recommendations; it simply
reports on the requirement for mobile home pitches to identified unmet needs over a 15
year period.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no personnel implications arising directly from the report.

Financial implications may arise in the future should a requirement ever emerge for the
Council to provide a publicly owned and managed Gypsy and Traveller site(s). The
GTAA has identified an unmet need for mobile homes pitches at 3 unauthorised
developments in the county borough, which are all subject of separate planning
applications. Should any of these planning applications fail to receive approval then the
Council has a statutory duty to make provision for sites, which could be either privately or
publicly owned. There is currently no budget provision for providing GTAA sites, other
than to fund the first part of the statutory requirement from Part 3 of the Housing (Wales)
Act 2014 by undertaking the assessment of the accommodation needs every 5 years

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no personnel implications arising directly from the report.

Personnel implications may arise in the future should a requirement ever emerge for the
Council to provide a publicly owned and managed Gypsy and Traveller site(s). The
GTAA has identified an unmet need for mobile homes pitches at 3 unauthorised
developments in the county borough, which are all subject of separate planning
applications. Should any of these planning applications fail to receive approval then the
Council has a statutory duty to make provision for sites, which could be either privately or
publicly owned.

CONSULTATIONS

Engagement has taken place throughout the GTAA process with members of the Gypsy
and Traveller community and organisations that support the community, as detailed in the

GTAA report.

Comments from Consultee’s are reflected in the report.

STATUTORY POWER

Local Government Act 2014, Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014

Page 22


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/gtaa-2022-27-iia-form-v-2-accessible-doc

Author:

Consultees:

Appendices:

Appendix 1

Jane Roberts-Waite, Strategic Coordination Manager
(Email: roberj2@caerphilly.gov.uk, Tel: 01443 864340) &
Mark Jennings, Principal Housing Strategy Officer
(Email: jenniml@caerphilly.gov.uk, Tel: 01443 863121)

Clir Shayne Cook, Cabinet Member for Housing

Clir Andrew Whitcombe, Chair — Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny
ClIr Patricia Cook, Vice Chair — Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny
Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive

Dave Street, Corporate Director for Social Services and Housing
Nick Taylor-Williams, Head of Housing

Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer
Lesley Allen, Principal Group Accountant (Housing)

Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer — Equalities, Welsh Language &
Consultation

Victoria Morgan, Principal Planner / Statistician

Gary Mumford, Team Leader — Environmental Health

Elizabeth Sharma, Consultation and Public Engagement Officer
Kelsey Watkins, Communication and Tenant Engagement Officer
Rachel Hawker, Service Development Officer

Shelly Jones, Supporting People Manager

Tina McMahon, Community Regeneration Manager

Draft Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2022-2027

Page 23


mailto:roberj2@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:jennim1@caerphilly.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



APPENDIX 1

Caerphilly County
Borough Council Gypsy
and Traveller
Accommodation
Assessment

Draft Report
February 2022

Page 25



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Table of Contents

Chapter ONe — POlICY CONEXE.....uuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiiiiiieaebbbe bbb aaaaaeaaae 5
I O 01 1o Yo [ T £ USRS 5
1.1  PUrpoSe Of the GTAA ... 5
1.2 REPOM SITUCTUIE .. ..euiiitie et e e e e eaaas 6
1.3  Legislation & GUIAANCE .........uuiiiiiieiieiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e eeeeee 6
1.4 Definition Of KEY TEIMS ......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 8

Chapter Two — Background and analysis of existing data............ccccevvvvvvviiiiinieeeeeeennns 9
2.0 Previous findings of the 2016 Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation
ASSESSIMENT ...ttt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e nrn e aaen 9
2.1 POPUIALION DALAL. ... .uuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii bbb 9
2.2 CAravan COUNT......cooiiiieiiiit ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ent e e e eeennaaeeees 16
2.3 Current Accommodation ProViSiON...............uueueueumuiimmiiiiiiiiiiininniennnennenne. 17

(@ aF=To (=T g N a1 (=T Y/ [=11 g o Te (o] [ o | 18
3.0 Project Steering Group COMPOSItION........ccovvviiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee e, 18
3.1 Study Methodology .......ccoooiiiieeeeeeeeee 18

Chapter Four - SUIVEY FINAINGS .....uuuiiiiee e e e e e eeeeees 21
4.0 HOoUSENOIAS INTEIVIEWS .....cceeeeeeeeeee e 21
4.1 Demographic Profile of Population............ccccccceeeiiiiiiiiiice e, 21
4.2  Suitability of Current ACCOMMOALION .........ccovvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee 24
4.3  Accommodation ASPIratiONS........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 27
4.4  Household Growth .........ooooiiiiiiiii e 29
T o 1 o 113 o] 1P 31

Chapter Five — Assessing Accommodation Needs ..........cceeevveiviiiiiiiiiiii e, 33
5.0 Residential UNmet NEEd ........ccovviiiiiiiiiiiie e 33
5.1 TranSit Sit€ PrOVISION ......uiiiieieiiiiiiiiiiie e e et e e e e eeeaaan e e e e e e e eeasennn s 35
5.2 Need for Travelling Showpeople PIOtS ........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiii e, 36

Chapter Six — Conclusions, Recommendations & Next Steps .......ccccceevevvvviiiieeeennnn. 37
6.0 Conclusions & Recommendations ...........coooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 37
6.1  NEXE SEEPS. ittt ettt e e eanan 38

Appendix 1: Definition Of K&Y TEIMIS .......iiiiiiiiiiiiiice e 39

2

Page 26



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

APPENIX 22 SUIVEY POSTEN ....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 42
APPENiX 3: SUIVEY FIYET ..o 43
Appendix 4: A List of Organisations Consulted .............ccooooeeeiiiiiiiiiiii e, 44
APPENIX 5: INTEIVIEW LOQ c.eeiviiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e e e e e nannas 45
Appendix 6: 2011 Census Data Regional Analysis ..........ccccccvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieene, 46
Appendix 7: Analysis of unauthorised encampments (2011-2015) ........ccceevvvveeeennn. 49

Table of Figures

Table 2.1: Breakdown of resident by age group for Caerphilly county borough ....... 10
Table 2.2: Breakdown of resident by age group and gender (male) for Caerphilly
(o710 11 Y/ o To ] (o 10 T o USSP 10
Table 2.3: Breakdown of resident by age group and gender (female) for Caerphilly
(oT0 101 1§V o To (o 18 o | o 0P 11
Table 2.4: Breakdown of residents aged 16+ by economic activity for Caerphilly

(o710 11§V o To ] (o 10 T o USSP 11
Table 2.5: Breakdown of residents aged 16+ by economic inactivity reason ........... 12

Table 2.6: Breakdown of resident aged 16+ by highest level of qualification for
Caerphilly county bOroUQgh...........oouiiii e 12
Table 2.7: Breakdown of residents by general health for Caerphilly county borough13
Table 2.8: Breakdown of residents by household composition for Caerphilly county

DOTOUGN . 13
Table 2.9: Gypsy Traveller Caravan Count for Caerphilly county borough............... 16
Table 2.10: Summary of Unauthorised Encampments for Caerphilly county borough
................................................................................................................................. 17
Figure 4.1: Respondent by EthNiCity..........coooviiiiii i 21
Figure 4.2: Respondent By age groUp ........veiiiiiiii i 22
Figure 4.3: Respondent DY gender...........oooviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 22
Figure 4.4: Number of people in household by respondent...........cccccccvvvviiiiniiiinnnnn. 23
Figure 4.5: Respondents & family members by age group........ccccoeeeeeviiieeiiiiiineenenns 23
Figure 4.6: A1 - Where do you lIVE NOW? ......coouiiiiiiiiii e 24
Figure 4.7: A2 - Are you satisfied with your current accommodation? ..................... 24
Figure 4.8: A3 - Can you tell me why you live here? ...........ooieiiiiiiiiiieecie e, 25
3

Page 27



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Figure 4.9: A4 - How long have you lived here?...........cccovvviiiiiiiiieeeeee e 25
Figure 4.10: A5 - If you moved within the last year, was your last home in this local

= LU 1 [0 1127 26
Figure 4.11: A6 - How long do you think you’ll stay here?..........cccooooeviiiiiiiiiiieneee, 26

Figure 4.12: A7 - Would you stay longer if changes or improvements were made to
your current aCCOMMOALIONT .......ccoeeiiieeee e 27
Figure 4.13: B2 - If living in caravans, are there enough sleeping areas for all
L1150 1= 1 27
Figure 4.14: B3 - Is there room on the pitch for additional trailers to prevent
OVEICTOWEING? ... 28
Figure 4.15: B4 - Would anyone in your family like to join the local authority waiting
list for PItChES OF NOUSING ... .o e e e e e eaaees 29
Figure 4.16: C1 - Are you planning to move into other accommodation?................. 29
Figure 4.17: D1 - Is anyone in your household likely to move to their own home in the

Sy IS I Y ST= £ 37cPPTPPRTPN 30
Figure 4.18: E5 - Is there are need for more transit sites in Wales? ........................ 31
Table 5.1: Current residential SUPPIY ......coooeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 33
Table 5.2: Planned residential SUPPIY........uuiiiiiiiiiieeeie e 33
Table 5.3: Current residential demand ..., 34
Table 5.4: Future household growth............oooo 34
Table 5.5: UNMEL NEEA.........oeiiii e e e e e e e e e e eennnnnnes 34

4

Page 28



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Chapter One — Policy Context

1.0 Introduction

1.0.1 This report outlines the findings of the 2022 Gypsy Traveller Accommodation
Assessment (GTAA) undertaken by Caerphilly County Borough Council. In
coming to its findings the report considers a range of quantitative and
gualitative data based on existing data sources and interviews carried out with
members of the Gypsy and Traveller community.

1.0.2 The GTAA was undertaken in-house by the Council in accordance with
quidance issued to local authorities by Welsh Government. It was completed
between April 2021 and December 2021.

1.0.3 The term ‘Gypsy and Traveller’ in this report conforms to the definition
contained within section 108 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 and includes
travelling showpeople and New Travellers, whether or not they can
demonstrate a continued nomadic lifestyle.

1.0.4 The production of the GTAA was delayed 12 months due to Covid-19
pandemic on the instruction of Welsh Government. Work on this GTAA was
only recommenced once notification was received by the Council from Welsh
Government.

1.0.5 The GTTA covers the period March 2022 to February 2027. Its status is
currently draft pending the approval of Cabinet.

1.1 Purpose of the GTAA

1.1.1 The purpose of the GTAA is to provide the Council with an indication of the
accommodation requirements of Gypsies and Travellers living in or travelling
through the county borough, and to make provision for permanent sites where
the GTAA identifies an unmet need for mobile home pitches. In addition, the
GTAA should also provide evidence, where applicable, of the requirement for
transit provision and/or legal stopping place(s).

1.1.2 The main aims of the GTAA are to:
1. ensure compliance with the local authority duties under part 3 of the
Housing (Wales) Act 2014,
2. understand the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers living
or travelling through the county borough; and
3. provide an evidence base to underpin the Council’'s 2" Replacement
Local Development Plan.
1.1.3 The GTAA drew on a range of data sources including:

e areview of secondary sources;

Page 29


http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/communities/communitycohesion/gypsytravellers/accommodation-needs/?lang=en

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

1.2

121

1.3

13.1

e discussions with organisations involved with Gypsy and Traveller issues;
and

e face-to-face surveys of Gypsies and Travellers living in or travelling
through the county borough.

Report Structure

The GTAA report is structured into a series of chapters in accordance with the
template structure provided by Welsh Government:

e Chapter one covers the legislative requirements placed on local authorities
in Wales for assessing the accommodation needs of the Gypsy Traveller
community and statutory guidance;

e Chapter two provides an analysis of existing data sources including the
2011 Census, Council records and the caravan count;

e Chapter three sets out the methodology undertaken to complete the
primary survey of Gypsies and Travellers living in or travelling through the
county borough;

e Chapter four provides a summary of the survey findings including
household interviews, population profile, accommodation requirements
and household growth;

e Chapter five considers the assessment of accommodation needs both in
terms of permanent residential pitches and transit sites; and

e Chapter six is the concluding chapter and includes any recommendations
emanating from the undertaking of the GTAA and sets out any next steps.

Legislation & Guidance

The following section provides a summary of the key pieces of legislation and

guidance which local authorities should have regard to when assessing or
meeting the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers.

Housing (Wales) Act 2014 duties

1.3.2

1.3.3

Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 places a duty on local authorities in
Wales to assess the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers either
living in or resorting to their area and, where identified, meet the assessed
needs. Section 101 provides the duty to assess and section 103 provides the
duty to meet assessed needs.

Section 104 of the Act provides that the Welsh minister may direct the local
authority to exercise its powers under section 56 of the Mobile Homes Wales)

Page 30


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/7/part/3/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2013/6/enacted

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Act 2013 if they fail to comply with section 103 of the Housing (Wales) Act
2014.

1.3.4 All local authorities in Wales were to undertake their first accommodation
assessments within 12 months of commencement the Housing (Wales) Act
2014. The Council’'s 2016 GTAA, covering the period 2016-21, was approved
by Welsh Government in December 2017.

1.3.5 Local authorities are also required to submit accommodation assessments for
approval of Welsh ministers, which identify the needs within the specific local
authority area. The duty to undertake GTAAS, under Part 3 of the Housing
(Wales) Act 2014, rest with individual local authorities.

Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013

1.3.6 Section 56 of the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013 provides the power for local
authorities to provide sites for mobile homes where the GTAA identifies a
need. Section 56 does not provide a local authority with the power to provide
mobile homes.

1.3.7 In exercising its powers under section 56, to provide sites for mobile homes, a
local authority must have regard to any standards specified by the Welsh
ministers under section 10, in respect of site layout and the provision of
facilities, services and equipment.

Welsh Government Planning for Gypsy, Traveller and Showpeople Sites (Circular

005/2018)

1.3.8 Welsh Government Planning Circular 005/2018 supersedes advice contained
in Circular 30/2007 “Planning for gypsy and traveller caravan sites”, Circular
78/91 “Travelling Showpeople” and Circular 76/94 “Gypsy Sites Policy and
Unauthorised Camping”. It provides updated guidance on the planning
aspects of identifying sustainable sites for Gypsies and Travellers. It also
outlines how local planning authorities and Gypsies and Travellers can work
together to achieve this aim.

Welsh Government Designing Gypsy and Traveller Sites Guidance

1.3.9 Local authorities should have regard to Welsh Government guidance (2015)
on Designing Gypsy and Traveller Sites when developing sites for mobile
homes to ensure that such sites are designed and managed in culturally-
appropriate ways and provide a good standard of living.

Caerphilly County Borough Local Development Plan Up to 2021 (adopted 2010)

1.3.10 The evidence base for the adopted LDP indicated that there was no identified
need for a Gypsy and Traveller site and, therefore, no permanent or transit
sites were allocated in the LDP.

Page 31


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2013/6/enacted
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/planning-for-gypsy-traveller-and-showpeople-sites-wgc-0052018.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/equality/150528-designing-gypsy-and-traveller-sites-en.pdf
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Business/Planning-and-building-control-for-business/Local-Development-Plan/Local-Development-Plan-2010-(Adopted)/The-Adopted-LDP

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

1.3.11 The plan does, however, set out a criteria-based policy on Locational
Constraints — Gypsy and Traveller Caravan Sites (Policy CW21), against
which any planning applications for permanent and transit Gypsy and
Traveller caravan sites would be assessed should they come forward in the
plan period.

1.3.12 The Council has commenced preparation of a 2"¥ Replacement Local
Development Plan (2RLDP) for the plan period 2020-2035. The GTAA will
form an important part of the evidence base by identifying any unmet need for
additional accommodation for Gypsies and Travellers within the county
borough. In line with the 2018 Circular, the 2RLDP will continue to include a
criteria-based policy to guide the determination of planning applications for
Gypsy and Traveller sites.

1.4 Definition of Key Terms

1.4.1 A list of key terms used in this report is provided in Appendix 1.

Page 32



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Chapter Two — Background and analysis of existing data

2.0

2.0.1

2.0.2

2.0.3

2.04

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

Previous findings of the 2016 Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation
Assessment

In 2016 the Council published its first GTAA. The GTAA was undertaken in-
house and produced in accordance with Welsh Government guidance. The
GTAA was approved by Welsh Government in December 2017.

The GTAA consisted of an analysis of primary research and a range of
secondary data. The extent of the primary research was limited due to the
relatively low number of surveys undertaken.

The GTTA showed no requirement for either permanent or transit site
provision.

As part of a series of recommendations emanating from the undertaking of the
GTAA, the Council has now amended its Managing Unauthorised
Encampments Policy to allow for criteria on the use of temporary stopping
places.

Population Data

The analysis provided below is based on outputs from the 2011 Census, as
compiled by the Office of National Statistics. Although the 2021 Census has
now been completed, at the time of writing this report the information collected
has yet to be made public.

The 2011 Census showed that 31 people, or just 0.02% of the total population in
the county borough, described their ethnicity as ‘Gypsy or Irish Traveller'. Due
to the relatively small number of people who self-ascribed as Gypsy or Irish
Traveller in the 2011 Census the Office of National Statistics would have used
data swapping techniques to protect people’s identity. Both from a perspective
that the information is out of date and the low number of surveys completed,
care needs to be taken when analysing the data presented below or drawing
any conclusions from it.

Provided for reference in Appendix 6 is a breakdown of the cross tabular
information extracted from the 2011 Census for Caerphilly county borough,
together with comparison information for a number of other local authorities in
the South East Wales region.

Table 2.1 below provides a breakdown of residents by age group. It shows that
all the Gypsy or Irish Travellers living within the county borough as at the 2011
Census were aged under 65 years. The majority were in the 40-64 age group,
which accounted for 58.1% of all Gypsy or Irish Traveller residents, compared
with 34% of the population of the county borough as a whole. A smaller

Page 33


http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/guide-method/census/2011/index.html?utm_source=twitterfeed&utm_medium=twitter

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

proportion of Gypsy or Irish Travellers were aged 0-17 years than in the county
borough as a whole (16.1% compared with 22.2%).

Table 2.1: Breakdown of resident by age group for Caerphilly county borough

Count of Count of % of
% of all : .
all . Gypsyl/lrish  Gypsyl/lrish
. residents
residents Travellers Travellers
All usual residents 178,806 31
Aged 0-17 years 39,691 22.2 5 16.1
Aged 18-39 years 48,800 27.3 8 25.8
Aged 40-64 years 60,750 34.0 18 58.1
Aged 65 years and over 29,565 16.5 0 0.0

Source: 2011 Census, ONS

2.1.5 Table 2.2 below provides a breakdown of residents by age and gender (male).
It shows that just over half of Gypsy or Irish Traveller residents were males.
75% of these were in the 40-64 age group (compared with 34.3% of the county
borough as a whole), with the remainder equally split over the 0-17 and 18-39
age groups.

Table 2.2: Breakdown of resident by age group and gender (male) for
Caerphilly county borough

Count of Count of % of
% of all ) .
all : Gypsyl/lrish  Gypsyl/lrish
. residents
residents Travellers Travellers
Male usual residents 87,701 16
Males aged 0-17 years 20,338 23.2 2 12.5
Males aged 18-39 years 24,062 27.4 2 12.5
Males aged 40-64 years 30,060 34.3 12 75.0
Males aged 65 years & over 13,241 15.1 0 0.0

Source: 2011 Census, ONS

2.1.6 Table 2.3 provides a breakdown of residents by age group and gender (female).
It shows that just under half of Gypsy and Irish Travellers were females. Two
fifths of these were in the 18-39 age group (compared with 27.2% of the county
borough as a whole), two fifths were in the 40-64 age group (33.7% of the
county borough as a whole), with the remainder in the 0-17 age group.

10
Page 34



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Table 2.3: Breakdown of resident by age group and gender (female) for

Caerphilly county borough

Count of
all

residents
Female usual residents 91,105
Females aged 0-17 years 19,353
Females aged 18-39 years 24,738
Females aged 40-64 years 30,690
Females aged 65 years & over 16,324

Source: 2011 Census, ONS

% of all
residents

21.2
27.2
33.7
17.9

2.1.7 Table 2.4 below provides a breakdown of residents aged 16+ by economic
activity. It shows that 83.8% of the Gypsy and Irish Traveller residents were
aged 16+. Of these, 30.8% were economically active compared with 59% of all
residents. All of the economically active Gypsy or Irish Travellers were in some
form of employment. For males this was either full-time or self-employment, and

for females this was part-time or full-time employment.

Table 2.4: Breakdown of residents aged 16+ by economic activity for

Caerphilly county borough

Count of
all
residents
All usual residents aged 16+ 143,825
Economically active residents 85,212
aged 16+
% of economically active
residents aged 16+ who are:
Employed part-time 17,378
Employed full-time 50,275
Self employed 7,966
Full-time students 2,852
Unemployed 6,741

Source: 2011 Census, ONS

% of all
residents

59.3

12.1
35.0
5.5
2.0
4.7

Count of % of
Gypsy/lrish  Gypsyl/lrish
Travellers Travellers
15
3 20.0
6 40.0
6 40.0
0 0.0
Count of % of
Gypsyl/lrish  Gypsy/Irish
Traveller Traveller
26
8 30.8
1 3.9
5 19.2
2 7.7
0 0.0
0 0.0

2.1.8 Table 2.5 below provides a breakdown of residents aged 16+ by economic
inactivity reason. It shows that 69.2% of Gypsy and Irish Travellers aged 16+
were economically inactive compared with 40.7% of all residents. A much lower
proportion was retired, and much higher proportions were looking after the

home/family or were long term sick/disabled. The majority of males were long-

term sick/disabled, and this was also the most common category for females,

followed by the looking after the home/family category.

2.1.9 In terms of the industry of employment, whilst the numbers were very small, the
most popular categories for Gypsy and Irish Travellers were wholesale & retail

Page 35

11



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

trade; repair of motor vehicles/motorcycles and public administration & defence;
compulsory social security.

Table 2.5: Breakdown of residents aged 16+ by economic inactivity reason

Count of % of
Gypsyl/lrish  Gypsy/Irish
Travellers Travellers
Economically inactive 58,613 40.7 18 69.2
residents aged 16+

Count of all % of all
residents residents

% of economically inactive
residents aged 16+ who are:

Retired 32,775 22.8 1 3.8
Students 5,901 4.1 0 0.00
Looking after home or family 5,681 3.9 4 15.4
Long term sick or disabled 11,130 17.7 11 42.3
Other 3,126 2.2 2 7.7

Source: 2011 Census, ONS

2.1.10 Table 2.6 below provides a breakdown of residents aged 16+ by highest level of
qualification. It shows that 61.5% of Gypsy or Irish Travellers have no
qualifications compared with 31.4% of all residents. Conversely, 23.1% of
Gypsy or Irish Travellers hold a Level 4 qualification (degree, higher degree,
NVQ Level 4-5, HNC/D, professional qualifications e.g. teacher, doctor)
compared with 18.7% of all residents.

Table 2.6: Breakdown of resident aged 16+ by highest level of qualification for
Caerphilly county borough

Count of % of
Gypsyl/lrish  Gypsyl/lrish
Travellers  Travellers
All usual residents aged 16+ 143,825 26
and highest level of
gualification:

Count of al % of all
residents residents

No qualifications 45,102 31.4 16 61.5
Level 1 qualifications 21,459 14.9 0 0.0
Level 2 qualifications 23,361 16.2 0 0.0
Apprenticeship 5,595 3.9 1 3.9
Level 3 qualifications 16,154 11.2 3 115
Level 4 qualifications & above 26,843 18.7 6 23.1
Other qualifications 5,311 3.7 0 0.0

Source: 2011 Census, ONS

2.1.11 Table 2.7 below provides a breakdown of residents by general health. It shows
that 45.2% of Gypsy and Irish Travellers stated that their general health was
very good or good, significantly lower than the figure of 74.8% for all residents.

12
Page 36



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

32.2% of Gypsy and Irish Travellers stated that their general health was bad or

very bad, significantly higher than the figure of 9.3% for all residents.

Table 2.7: Breakdown of residents by general health for Caerphilly county

borough

All usual residents & general

health:
Very good or good
Fair
Bad or very bad
Source: 2011 Census, ONS

Count of % of all
all :
. residents
residents
178,806
133,654 74.8
28,488 15.9
16,664 9.3

Count of % of
Gypsy/lrish  Gypsy/Irish
Travellers Travellers

31

14 45.2
7 22.6
10 32.2

2.1.12 Table 2.8 below provides a breakdown of residents by household composition.
It shows there to be 14 Gypsy or Irish Traveller households resident in the
county borough. Of these households, 57.1% were single person aged under
65 years, compared with a figure of 14.8% for all residents. 14.3% of Gypsy or

Irish Traveller households were married/same-sex civil partnership couple with

all children non-dependent compared with a figure of 7.6% for all residents.

Table 2.8: Breakdown of residents by household composition for Caerphilly

county borough

Household composition

Single person aged 65+
households

Households containing only
residents aged 65+ (more
than one)

Single person households

Married/same-sex civil
partnership couple
households with:

no children

dependent children

all children non-dependent

Cohabiting couple
households with:

no children

dependent children

all children non-dependent

Count of

all

residents

74,479

9,143

6,161

11,053

9,737
11,025
5,687

3,435
4,282
495

Page 37

% of all
residents

12.3

8.3

14.8

13.1
14.8
7.6

4.6
5.8
0.7

Count of % of
Gypsy/lrish = Gypsy/Irish
Traveller Travellers
14
0 0.0
0 0.0
8 57.1
1 7.1
1 7.1
2 14.3
1 7.2
0 0.0
0 0.0
13



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Lone parent households

with:
dependent children 6,533 8.8 1
all children non-dependent 3,141 4.2 0
Other households 3,787 5.1 0

Source: 2011 Census, ONS

Local Authority Housing and Planning records

2.1.13 The Council collects data on the requirement for permanent and transit site

provision in the county borough through the Common Housing Register. Any

requests for site provision are verified by the assessment team. There were
no requests recorded at the beginning of July 2021. There were two
applicants that indicated their ethnicity as Gypsy or Irish Traveller. However
neither applicant asked to complete a survey.

2.1.14 A review of homelessness returns by the Council on Stats Wales shows that

over the last 3 years there has been a nil return on the number of household
for which decisions taken, by ethnic group of applicant (Gypsy or Irish
Traveller).

2.1.15 There have been 3 unauthorised developments on privately owned sites

S

during the adopted LDP plan period. In all three cases, planning applications

were submitted to retain the sites as Gypsy and Traveller sites. As of

December 2021, two planning applications were awaiting determination. The

third application was refused planning permission in December 2019. The
applicants submitted an appeal, but Covid-19 restrictions have meant that th
hearing has been delayed.

Traveller Education Services

2.1.16 Due to the relatively low number of Gypsies and Travellers living in the coun

e

ty

borough the Council does not provide a separate traveller education service.
Instead this service is provided under a service level agreement by the Gwent

Education Minority-Ethnic Service, which is based in Newport.

2.1.17 At the beginning of each year all maintained schools in the county borough,
including nursery, primary, middle, secondary and special, are required to

provide Welsh Government with pupil and school level data. The Pupil Level

Annual School Census (PLASC) is mandatory requirement and all pupils on
school roll at the time of the census must be included in the return. Data
taken from Stats Wales (on 22/12/2021) showed that at the time of the
2020/21 PLASC, out of a total of 22,420 pupils in the county borough (prima
and secondary), 5 recorded as Traveller, less than 5 as Gypsy and nil as
Roma.

Page 38

ry

14

7.2
0.0

0.0


http://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Schools-Education/Gwent-Education-Minority-Ethnic-Service-(GEMS).aspx
http://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Schools-Education/Gwent-Education-Minority-Ethnic-Service-(GEMS).aspx
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Schools-and-Teachers/Schools-Census/Pupil-Level-Annual-School-Census/Ethnicity-National-Identity-and-Language/pupils5andover-by-localauthority-ethnicbackground

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Gwent Police

2.1.18 The Council works closely with Gwent Police in dealing with unauthorised
encampments throughout the county borough and has collaborated on the
development of a regional managing unauthorised encampments policy put
together by Gwent Police. No instances of unauthorised encampments were
reported to the Council by Gwent Police during the undertaking of the
fieldwork for this GTAA.

2.1.19 The lead officer for Gypsy Travellers at Gwent Police was made aware of the
undertaking of this GTAA. In addition to using Welsh Government’s template
survey form the Council also agreed to ask some supplementary questions
requested by Gwent Police. The questions concerned the services Gwent
Police provide to victims of crime. The responses to these questions are
confidential and, therefore, an analysis of responses is not included in this
report.

Knowledge from specialist officers or voluntary organisations

2.1.20 Save the Children, via the Travelling Ahead project, has set up a number of
local fora across Wales. It was confirmed by Save the Children that a forum
was not set up in the county borough because of the low numbers of Gypsy or
Traveller children living here, which appears to correspond with information
provided by the PLASC data (see paragraph 2.1.17).

2.1.21 Historically, there has not been a need for the Council to directly or indirectly
employ a specialist officer to work with the Gypsy Traveller community, such
as a liaison officer. There is no Gypsy or Traveller designated permanent
site(s) within the county borough so, consequently, there are no site wardens
either.

2.1.22 As part of this GTAA the Council has communicated with a number of
voluntary organisations working specifically in the county borough, regionally
or on a national basis. This included those relevant organisations listed in
Appendix 1 of the Welsh Government guidance (2015). A variety of methods
was used to communicate with these organisations including telephone,
email, letter or virtual meeting. The reason for communicating was to raise
awareness of the assessment, provide a point of contact for voluntary
organisations to refer Gypsies and Travellers using their services and to try to
establish the numbers of Gypsies and Travellers living in the county borough
that used their services.

2.1.23 A meeting was held with Gypsies & Travellers Wales and a member of the
Gypsy Traveller community in early 2020 to discuss the Council’'s approach to
undertaking of the GTAA. Following the meeting a draft project plan was
established.

2.1.241n 2021 the Council appointed Gypsies and Travellers Wales to undertake a
project to identify the housing related support needs of Gypsies and Travellers
living on sites within the county borough. The purpose of the project was to

15
Page 39


http://www.travellingahead.org.uk/

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

provide the Council with a greater understanding on the support needs of
Gypsies and Travellers living in the county borough to feed into wider support
strategies. It identified that there were varying housing related support needs,
particularly around planning and accommodation issues.

2.2 Caravan Count

2.2.1 Local authorities in Wales were required to carry out a biannual caravan
count. The count set out the number of Gypsy and Traveller caravans on
authorised and unauthorised sites in Wales, and the status of pitches on local
authority sites. The count was voluntary and are carried out in January and
July every year. The count was deemed by Welsh Government to be an
ineffective way of recording information and was ended in 2020.

2.2.2 Table 2.9 below shows the results of the caravan count in the county borough
over the last 10 years. The information has been taken from Stats Wales
website. The table shows that at the time of the counts there were no Gypsy
and Traveller caravans on authorised and unauthorised sites in county

borough.
Table 2.9: Gypsy Traveller Caravan Count for Caerphilly county borough
Date Count of Date Count of
caravans caravans
January 2011 0 July 2011 0
January 2012 0 July 2012 0
January 2013 0 July 2013 0
January 2014 0 July 2014 0
January 2015 0 July 2015 0
January 2016 0 July 2016 0
January 2017 0 July 2017 0
January 2018 0 July 2018 0
January 2019 0 July 2019 0
January 2020 6 - -

Source: Stats Wales (November 2021)

2.2.3 Information on authorised sites, unauthorised encampments and unauthorised
developments is now maintained by each local authority on the Caravan
Count System website, which was introduced by Welsh Government in 2016.
This system is web based and the recording will take place in real time so to
provide a constant picture throughout Wales.

2.2.4 The table below shows a breakdown of unauthorised encampments in the
county borough since the implementation of the Caravan Count System:

16
Page 40



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Table 2.10: Summary of Unauthorised Encampments for Caerphilly county
borough

Commenced Ended Number of Location

Caravans
26/06/2017 30/06/2017 8 Caerphilly Train Station Park & Ride
03/09/2018 07/09/2018 3 Pontygwindy Ind Estate, Caerphilly
29/11/2020 6/12/2020 4 Caerphilly Train Station Park & Ride
12/05/2021 14/05/2021 4 Caerphilly Train Station Park & Ride

Source: Welsh Government (November 2021)

2.3 Current Accommodation Provision

2.3.1 There are currently no local authority owned sites in the county borough,
either permanent or transit. There has been no site provision within the
county borough since the inception of the Council in 1996.

2.3.2 There are no privately owned authorised sites (permanent) in the county
borough, which are designated solely for Gypsy or Traveller use. There are,
however, 3 privately owned residential caravan sites in the county borough.

2.3.3 There are currently no privately owned Gypsy and Traveller sites with
temporary permission in the county borough.

2.3.4 There are currently 3 unauthorised developments in the county borough, all of
which have submitted a planning application for retrospective permission.
The location of the 3 sites have not been disclosed to protect the identities of
the people living at these sites.

2.3.5 The table provided in Appendix 7 provides an analysis of unauthorised
encampments that have occurred in the county borough in 5 years preceding
the undertaking of the 2016 GTAA. When compared with Table 2.10 you can
see that in the last 4 years there has been a significant drop in the instances
of unauthorised encampments taking place.

17
Page 41



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Chapter Three - Methodology

3.0

3.0.1

3.0.2

3.0.3

3.04

3.1

3.1.1

Project Steering Group Composition

All aspects of the GTAA were overseen by a project steering group, a group
set up by officers to oversee the undertaking of the 2016 GTAA and have met
on a biannual basis since then to monitor any changes in the situation since to
2016 GTAA was undertaken.

The composition of the group reflects the local situation. Points taken into
consideration included the low number of people who self-ascribed as Gypsy
or Traveller in the 2011 Census, there was no permanent site provision in the
county borough, the numbers of unauthorised encampments per annum was
very low and the pressure placed on statutory and third sector organisations
through participating in GTAA which are being carried out simultaneously in
other local authority areas in Wales.

Although the project steering group is small, it is able to draw on resources
from other Council departments and organisations that could have an input
into the process. Therefore, the group comprised of representatives from the
following service areas within the Council:

e Social Service & Housing (supporting people, Caerphilly Cares, public
sector housing and housing strategy & development);

ICT & Customer Services (corporate communications);

Public Protection (environmental health);

Corporate Policy (corporate policy and equalities);

Regeneration & Planning; and

the community cohesion team for West Gwent.

Although not part of the project steering group, discussions about the GTAA
have taken place with the education department.

Given that the Covid-19 pandemic was still current during the undertaking of
this GTAA, and in the interests of public health, meetings have been limited
and those meetings which have taken place were conducted virtually. Advice
issued by the Council was not to carry out any face-to-face meetings with the
public due to the potential health risk, therefore, no members of the Gypsy
Traveller community were involved in the steering group process. Although,
discussions were held with an officer of the Travelling Ahead Project and a
member of the Gypsy Traveller community (non-resident) prior to the
commencement of this GTAA.

Study Methodology
The GTAA was undertaken in accordance with guidance issued by Welsh

Government (2015). It consisted of a review of secondary data sources, as
outlined in Chapter 2, and a primary survey with members of the Gypsy

18
Page 42



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

Traveller community, as outlined in Chapter 4. The study was undertaken by
members of the project steering group (see paragraph 3.0.3).

The Council used a wide range of engagement methods to encourage
participation of the Gypsy Traveller community in the GTAA. Where Covid-19
pandemic regulations allowed the consultation stage of the GTAA was
undertaken in accordance with the engagement checklist specified by Welsh
Government below:

1. Visit every Gypsy and Traveller household identified through the data
analysis process up to 3 times, if necessary.

2. Publish details of the GTAA process, including contact details to allow
community members to request an interview.

3. Consult relevant community support organisations, such as those outlined
in Annex 1 of the Welsh Government guidance (2015).

4. Develop a local authority waiting list for both pitches and housing, which is
accessible and communicated to community members.

5. Endeavour to include Gypsies and Travellers on the GTAA project steering
group.

6. Ensure contact details provided to the local authority by community
members through the survey process are followed up and needs
assessed.

7. Consider holding on-site (or nearby) GTAA information events to explain
why community members should participate and encourage site residents
to bring others who may not be known to the local authority.

Local authorities were not permitted to recommence work on their GTAA until
after they had received notification from Welsh Government, which was
received in May 2021. Although, face to face work did not start until after a
change in Welsh Government Covid-19 guidance in August 201. The primary
survey was undertaken between August and October 2021. The consultation
period was set to commence before the start and end after the school summer
holidays, to capture any members of the community that may be travelling
during the summer months.

To raise awareness of the undertaking of the 2021 GTAA the Council placed
specially designed posters in strategic positions around the county borough
including libraries, leisure centres and Council offices that were open to the
public. The poster was produced bilingually in accordance with the Council’s
Welsh language policy. A copy of the poster is included in Appendix 2.

The Council also used its corporate website and social media platforms to
widely promote the undertaking of the GTAA. A dedicated web page has
been set up on the Council’s main website to provide information on the
GTAA. The web page also contained a link to the Welsh Government
guidance on undertaking GTAA.

The specifically designed posters were given to the regional community
cohesion coordinator to disseminate in their area of work including Caerphilly,
Torfaen and Blaenau Gwent local authorities.

19
Page 43


http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Housing/Gypsy-and-Traveller-Accommodation-Assessment

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

3.1.7 The Council also sent a copy of the poster to a range of Gypsy and Traveller
support organisations, asking for assistance in raising awareness of the GTAA
amongst their service users.

3.1.8 As part of the household survey undertaken in the summer of 2021 for the
2022 Local Housing Market Assessment, respondents were asked whether
they were a Gypsy or Traveller. Of the 316 responses received none of the
respondents said they were a Gypsy or a Traveller. Although, those that did
would have been asked if they would like to have been interviewed for this
GTAA.

3.1.9 Alist of the organisations consulted as part of the GTAA is provided in
Appendix 4. A variety of methods was used to communicate with these
organisations including telephone, email, letter or meeting in person as
discussed in Chapter 2.

3.1.10 Members of the project steering group visited the 3 private caravan sites in
the county borough to speak with residents about the GTAA. All residents
that were at home during the visit were spoken to and provided with
information on the GTAA. Information was left for those people not at home.
None of these sites are designated specifically by the Council for Gypsy or
Traveller use.

3.1.11 Members of the project steering group also visited the 3 unauthorised
developments within the county borough. The purpose of the first visit was
purely to raise awareness of the undertaking of the GTAA and not to complete
the survey. Covid-19 regulations were still in place and it was decided that
interviews would not be carried out until restrictions were relaxed. A poster
we left with the people living on each site providing information on the GTAA.
It was clearly explained to the people that the GTAA had no bearing on their
respective planning applications.

3.1.12 Members of the project steering group revisited the sites between September
and October 2021 to carry out the surveys. One family subsequently declined
to take place in the survey. Surveys were completed at the other 2 sites.

3.1.13 The universal questionnaire contained within the Welsh Government guidance
(2015) was used for all surveys undertaken as part of the GTAA. No
alterations were made by the Council to the questionnaire. In addition, some
supplementary questions were asked on behalf of Gwent Police, the details of
which are not considered by this GTAA.

20
Page 44



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Chapter Four - Survey Findings

4.0

4.0.1

4.0.2

4.0.3

4.0.4

4.1

41.1

Households interviews

In total, 9 surveys were undertaken during the GTAA. The analysis contained
in the following paragraphs is, therefore, based on the information provided
during the undertaking of these surveys.

Residents at all of the 3 unauthorised developments were asked to take part
in the survey. Only residents living at 2 of the 3 unauthorised developments
agreed complete a survey.

As outlined in the previous chapters, there are no designated Gypsy or
Traveller sites and the number of people self-ascribing in the 2011 is very low.
Although, the Council attempted to raise awareness of the undertaking of the
GTAA in reality it received very few enquiries from the community about the
process.

A copy of the interview log used by the steering group to record the
assessment process is provided in Appendix 5. The log has been edited to
protect the identities of those people the Council has engaged with as part of
the survey.

Demographic Profile of Population

Figure 4.1 below provides a breakdown of the ethnicity of each respondents.
It shows that all respondents self-ascribed Roma.

Figure 4.1: Respondent by Ethnicity

M Traveller

B Roma

M Irish traveller
H New Traveller
 Showperson

m Other

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.1.2 Figure 4.2 below provides a breakdown of the age group of all respondents.

Age group was asked to protect the identities of the respondents. It shows a
spread in ages ranging from 18 to 64, with the most populated age group
being 18-24.

21
Page 45



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Figure 4.2: Respondent by age group

m18-24
m 25-39

m40-59
m 60 - 64

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.1.3 Figure 4.3 below provides a breakdown of the gender of each respondent. It
shows that a slightly higher percentage of respondents were female.

Figure 4.3: Respondent by gender

H Male

B Female

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.1.4 Figure 4.4 below provides a breakdown of the number of people residing with
each respondent. It shows that household sizes ranged from 2 to 5 people.

22
Page 46



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Figure 4.4: Number of people in household by respondent
6

5

4

3
2
I_EI
. HEN
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Respondent

Number in Household

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.1.5 Figure 4.5 below provides a breakdown of respondents and their family
members by age group. It shows that the majority of people are aged over 18
(52.2%), albeit by a very small number. The percentage of people aged under
18 (47.8%) is very high when compared to the 2011 Census data provided at
table 2.1 - Breakdown of resident by age group (Caerphilly county borough).
When compared with this data, it shows that the percentage of people under
18 is more than double total resident population of the same age group
(22.2%) and more than triple those identifying as Gypsy or Irish Traveller for
the same age group (16.1%).

Figure 4.5: Respondents & family members by age group

m 0-17
m 18-64
® 65+

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

23
Page 47



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

4.2 Suitability of Current Accommodation

4.2.1 Question Al asked respondents where they live now. Figure 4.6 below
provides a breakdown responses. It shows that all respondents we are living
on private sites without planning permission or unauthorised developments,
as defined by the Council.

Figure 4.6: A1 - Where do you live now?

M Local Authority residential
site

B Council transit site

M Private site without
planning permission

M Private site with planning
permission

B Unauthorised
encampment

m Bricks and mortar -
socially rented

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.2.2 Question A2 asked respondents whether they were satisfied with their current
accommodation. Figure 4.7 below provides a breakdown of the responses. It
shows that all respondents were satisfied with their current accommodation.

Figure 4.7: A2 - Are you satisfied with your current accommodation?

M Yes
H No

m Prefer not to say

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.2.3 Question A3 asked applicants why they live here. Figure 4.8 below provides a
breakdown of responses. It shows that all respondents stated live there
because of another reason other than the standard responses provided.

24
Page 48



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Reasons included work purpose (no local connection) and being required to
move from previous location.

Figure 4.8: A3 - Can you tell me why you live here?

M Local connections (family
or work)

B No alternative authorised
pitch

m Can't find a house to
move into
M Health or age reasons

m Prefer houses to caravans

m Other

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.2.4 Question A4 asked respondents how long they had lived at their current
location. Figure 4.9 below provides a breakdown of responses. It shows that
the majority of respondents had lived at their current location less than 6
months, whereas the remainder had lived there for between 2-5 years.

Figure 4.9: A4 - How long have you lived here?

M Less than 1 month
B 1-6 months
 7-12 months

W 1-2 years

W 2-5 years

m Over 5 years

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.2.5 Question A5 asked respondents that had moved within the last year (5 in
total), was their last home in the county borough. Figure 4.10 below provides
a breakdown of those responses. It shows that all respondents last home was
not in the county borough.

25
Page 49



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Figure 4.10: A5 - If you moved within the last year, was your last home in this
local authority?

M Yes

H No

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.2.6 Question A6 asked respondents how long they think they would be likely to
stay at their current location. Figure 4.11 below provides a breakdown of
responses. It shows that all respondents did not expect to move.

Figure 4.11: A6 - How long do you think you’ll stay here?

m 1-2 days

m 3-28 days

® 1-3 months

B 3 months - 2 years

M 2-5 years

m Over 5 years

1 Do not intend to move

= Don't know

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.2.7 Question A7 asked respondents would they stay longer if changes or
improvements were made to their current accommodation. Given the
respondents answer to the last question the answer to this question was not
applicable. However, 5 of the 9 respondent did add that their remaining at
their current location hinged on receiving planning approval.

26
Page 50



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Figure 4.12: A7 - Would you stay longer if changes or improvements were
made to your current accommodation?

M Yes
H No

mN/a

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.2.8 Question B2 asked respondents living in caravans if there were enough
sleeping areas for all residents. Figure 4.13 below provides a breakdown of
responses. It shows that all respondents stated that there were enough
sleeping areas for all residents.

Figure 4.13: B2 - If living in caravans, are there enough sleeping areas for all
residents?

H Yes

H No

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.3 Accommodation Aspirations

4.3.1 The survey undertaken as part of this GTAA took into consideration both the
needs and preferences of those who desire authorised pitches, either within
the county borough or within another local authority area. The following
paragraphs will summarise any emerging needs and preferences and whether

27
Page 51



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

any aspirations were discounted for the purpose of the GTAA, including
reasons.

4.3.2 Question B3 asked respondents if there was room in the pitch for additional
trailers to prevent overcrowding. Table 4.14 provides a breakdown of
responses. It shows that all respondents said there was room for additional
growth.

Figure 4.14: B3 - Is there room on the pitch for additional trailers to prevent
overcrowding?

= Yes
= No

= N/a

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.3.2 Question B4 asked respondents whether anyone in their family would like to
join the local authority waiting list for pitches or housing. Figure 4.15 below
provides a breakdown of responses. It shows that all respondents said they
would not like to join the local authority waiting list for pitches of housing.

Page 52

28



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Figure 4.15: B4 - Would anyone in your family like to join the local authority
waiting list for pitches or housing?

H Yes

H No

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.3.3 Question C1 asked respondents if they were planning to move into other
accommodation. Figure 4.16 below provides a breakdown of responses. It
shows no respondents were planning to move into other accommodation.

Figure 4.16: C1 - Are you planning to move into other accommodation?

HYes
H No

m Prefer not to say

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.3.4 Given the responses received to question C1, there was no requirement to
ask question C2-C7. These questions were, therefore, skipped.

4.4 Household Growth
4.4.1 Question D1 asked respondents if anyone in their household is likely to move

into their own home in the next 5 years. Figure 4.17 below provides a
breakdown of responses. It shows that 1 respondent stated 1 person from

29
Page 53



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

their household would be likely to move into their own home in the next 5
years.

Figure 4.17: D1 - Is anyone in your household likely to move to their own home
in the next 5 years?

HYes
®mNo
Don't know

B Prefer not to say

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.4.2

4.4.3

Question D2 asked the respondent whether the location of the new home
identified in D1 would be in the county borough. The respondent confirmed
that the new home would be required in the county borough, at the same
location their family is currently residing at.

Question D3 asked the respondent how many new households there will be
and when will these be needed. They said 1 new household, on a private site,
within the next 2-5 years.

4.4.4 Question D4 asked all respondents if they have any family members living

4.4.5

outside of the county borough who camp here regularly. All respondents said
that they have no family members living outside of the county borough who
camp here regularly. This response corresponds with data maintained by the
Council on unauthorised encampments.

Given the responses received to question D4, question D5 was not required to
be asked.

Section E — Transit Sites

4.4.6

4.4.7

Question E1 asked respondents if they had camped by the roadside / on an
unauthorised encampment / on a transit site on Wales while travelling in the
past year. All respondents stated that they had not.

On the basis of the responses to question E1, question E2 to E3 were not
required to be asked and were skipped.

30
Page 54



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

4.4.8

Question E5 asked respondents if they thought there was a need for more
transit sites in Wales. Figure 4.18 below provides a breakdown of responses.
4 respondents stated that they felt there was a need for more transit sites in
Wales, whereas 5 felt there wasn't.

Figure 4.18: E5 - Is there are need for more transit sites in Wales?

M Yes
H No

Prefer not to say

Source: Caerphilly CBC GTAA 2022

4.4.9

4.5

45.1

4.5.2

45.3

454

Question E6 asked respondents where they felt the transit sites needed to be
provided. This question was only asked of those respondents that responded
there was a need in question E5. Despite being probed for specific areas, all
respondents said in every local authority area in Wales.

Conclusions

Evidence suggests that there is only a very small number of Gypsy Travellers
currently living in the county borough. The 2011 Census identified only 31
people having self-ascribed as Gypsy or Irish Traveller. Although, this figure
is likely to have increased since the undertaking of the 2011 Census.

There are only a relatively small number of private residential caravan sites in
the county borough and no publicly owned sites. No members of the Gypsy
Traveller community living in bricks and mortar asked to be interviewed as
part of the GTAA.

There have been a relatively small number of unauthorised encampments
within the county borough in the last 10 years. In the last three years the
Council has received 3 planning applications from member of the Gypsy
Traveller community.

No members of the Gypsy Traveller community have presented themselves to
the Council as homeless or requested site provision via the Council’s
Common Housing Register.

31
Page 55



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

4.5.5 The Council has never received notification from a local authority in the UK
regarding Gypsy or Travellers living in their area that originally lived in the
county borough, who would like to return here but cannot due to the lack of
site provision.

4.5.6 The Council has received no indirect contact from members of the Gypsy
Traveller community via national or regional representatives, other than for
one family residing on one of the unauthorised developments.

4.5.7 In total 9 surveys were completed during the undertaking of the GTAA. The
information provided from these surveys found that all respondents
considered themselves to be suitably accommodated, despite not having
planning permission to reside at their current location. Preference from the
respondents is for private provision.

4.5.8 With the exception of those people living on unauthorised developments in the
county borough, it may be logical to conclude, for the reasons set out in the
summary above, that many members of the Gypsy Traveller community
currently living in bricks and mortar housing consider themselves to be
adequately housed and do not require any form of site provision.

32
Page 56



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Chapter Five — Assessing Accommodation Needs
5.0 Residential Unmet Need

5.0.1 Table 5.1 below provides a breakdown of the current residential supply in the
county borough. It shows the total supply to be nil. The reason for this is
because there are currently no authorised resident Gypsy or Traveller sites
in the county borough, provided either by the Council or through private
provision.

Table 5.1: Current residential supply

Current residential supply Number of pitches
A. Occupied Local Authority pitches 0
B. Occupied authorised private pitches 0
Total 0

5.0.2 Table 5.2 below provides a breakdown of the residential supply planned in
the county borough. It shows the total planned supply to be nil. The reason
for this is because there are currently no Gypsy or Traveller sites located in
the county borough and there are no sites planned with the prerequisite
permissions. There are currently 3 unauthorised developments in the county
borough that are awaiting the outcome of their planning applications.

Table 5.2: Planned residential supply

Planned residential supply Number of pitches
C. Vacant Local Authority pitches and 0
available vacant private pitches
D. Pitches expected to become vacant in 0
near future (see note 1)
E. New Local Authority and private 0
pitches with planning permission
Total 0

5.0.3 In the absence of survey information from the 3" unauthorised development,
information submitted as part of the planning application was used to
estimate current residential demand and future household growth.

5.0.4 Table 5.3 below provides a breakdown of current residential demand. It
shows a total demand of 11 pitches, which is the sum of demand from the 3
unauthorised developments situated in the county borough. Planning
applications have been submitted on all three sites, which are at various
stages of determination. Should planning permission be granted for all then
the current residential demand would potentially reduce to nil.

33
Page 57



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Table 5.3: Current residential demand

Current residential demand Pitch demand
F. unauthorised encampments 0
G. unauthorised development 11
H. overcrowded pitches (see note 2) 0
I. conventional housing (see note 3) 0
J. new households to arrive (see note 4) 0
Total 11

5.0.5 Table 5.4 below provides a breakdown of future household growth, with

growth being estimated on the basis of the age of all residents (see Figure
4.5). Future household growth has been forecast to grow at 1.5% per
annum, a figure we know is comparable with neighbouring local authorities
and is commonly used by Opinion Research Services, a company that has
carried out many local authority GTAA. Given that these families have
recently settled at the site location it has been assumed that pitches will not
turnover during this period. It shows a growth of one pitch within the next 5
years and 3 pitches in total over the period of the emerging LDP (up to
2035). This growth rate also accords with the findings of the survey, which
indicates that one that one household was expected to form in the next 5
years (Figure 4.17).

Table 5.4: Future household growth

Current households Future households (at Future households (Plan
year 5) period)
K. 11 (see note 7) 12 (see note 5) 14 (see note 6)
L. Additional household 1 3
pitch need

5.0.6 Table 5.5 below provides a breakdown of future residential demand for

pitches and any unmet need. It shows a current requirement of 11 pitches,
increasing by 1 over the next 5 years to give a requirement of 12 pitches.
Over the period of the LDP the requirement increases from 11 pitches to 14.
This table is populated by taking information from tables 5.1 to 5.4.

Table 5.5: Unmet need

Unmet Need Need Need accommodated
arising

M. Current residential demand 11

N. Future residential demand (5 year) 1

O. Future residential demand (plan period) 3

P. Planned residential supply 0

Q. Unmet need (5 year) 12 pitches

R. Unmet need (Plan period) 14 pitches

Welsh Government Explanatory notes

1.

Where applicable, identified through an analysis of pitch turnover data.

34
Page 58



5.1

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Overcrowding — e.g. where family numbers have grown to the extent that there
is now insufficient space for the family within its mobile home accommodation
and insufficient space on the pitch or site for a further mobile home.

Where identified in the survey. To include those with a cultural aversion to
conventional housing, those experiencing overcrowding, and those who have
reached adulthood and want to live on a site.

Where identified in the survey through waiting list, caravan count or partnership
working with local authorities in the region.

Local growth rate should be based on details identified in the local survey — 1
new household to form in the next 5 years.

Current residential supply + current residential demand — pitches expecting to
become vacant.

Occupied authorised pitches plus the current residential demand, minus the
expected vacancies from authorised pitches.

Transit Site Provision

5.1.1 The following paragraphs will provide analysis of information held by the

Council on instances of unauthorised encampments taking place in the
borough.

5.1.2 An analysis of the unauthorised encampments that have occurred over the

last 5 years in the county borough is provided in section 2.3. The analysis
shows that the majority of these encampments result from people simply
passing through the county borough and generally lasting less than one week.

5.1.3 The national biannual caravan count records instances of unauthorised

encampments occurring in the county borough on date prescribed by Welsh
Government. Analysis of this data showed no instances of unauthorised
encampments were ever identified when the count was undertaken (see
Chapter 2.2).

5.1.4 Guidance was given to the Environmental Health team on the GTAA process

and the need to carry out surveys at all unauthorised encampments.
However, no instances of unauthorised encampments in the county borough
occurred during the undertaking of this GTAA.

5.1.5 Following the completion of the 2015 GTAA the Council gave an undertaking

to Welsh Government to consider adding criteria to the managing of
unauthorised encampments protocol to facilitate, where required, the use of
temporary stopping places. This criteria have yet to be utilised given the
infrequency and nature of the unauthorised encampments that have occurred
in the county borough in the last 5 years.

5.1.6 With the exception of Torfaen council there is currently no Gypsy or Traveller

transit provision in Wales.

5.1.7 SE Wales local authorities met in 2021 to discuss the requirement for transit

provision in the region. Agreement was reached to commission consultants to

35
Page 59



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

524

5.25

carry out some research into the requirement for regional transit provision and
a brief has been prepared. No timetable has been established for the
conclusion of this work, other than the necessity for it to be concluded to feed
into each local authorities’ Local Development Plan.

Need for Travelling Showpeople Plots

The 2016 GTAA revealed no requirement for provision for Travelling
Showpeople.

No provision for Showpeople was made in the adopted Local Development
Plan.

There are no formal sites in the county borough designated for use solely by
Travelling Showpeople.

The Showmen’s Guild of Great Britain was provided with a copy of the
poster provided in Appendix 2 and asked to disseminate amongst their
service users.

No Travelling Showpeople were surveyed as part of the GTAA. All
respondents to the survey identified themselves as Romany — see Figure
4.1.

36
Page 60



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Chapter Six — Conclusions, Recommendations & Next Steps

6.1  This final chapter draws conclusions from the qualitative and quantitative
information considered in chapters 2-5. It then makes a series of
recommendations and outlines any next steps.

6.0 Conclusions & Recommendations

6.0.1 The undertaking of the GTAA has been complicated by a number of factors,
which have been outlined in preceding chapters. The assumptions made in
this GTAA are based on a very low sample size, despite the best endeavours
of the Council to engage with members of the Gypsy Traveller community.

6.0.2 Tables 5.1-5.5 in Chapter 5 show that there is a small requirement for
permanent site provision within the county borough. This requirements
emanates from families currently occupying 3 unauthorised developments
located in the county borough. A planning application has been submitted for
each site to regularise occupation. If each of these applications are approved
either by planning committee or allowed at appeal, then this would address
the existing accommodation needs of the occupants. If the applications are
subsequently refused and enforcement action taken then there may be a need
to identify an alternative site or sites depending on whether the applicants
wish to remain in the county borough.

6.0.3 The needs calculation has identified a need for 3 additional pitches. One of
these pitches will be required from a new household forming in the next 5
years, as identified from the household survey. This household could
potentially be accommodated on the existing site, subject to planning
approval. Future pitch requirements are projected by applying growth rates to
the existing need figures from the period 2026-2035. Whilst the projections
towards the end of the plan period are inherently more uncertain, it is
considered that these additional households could potentially be
accommodated within or on land adjoining the existing sites if required,
subject to planning permission.

6.0.4 Section 5.1 provides an analysis of unauthorised encampments in the county
borough. The analysis shows there is no requirement for transit provision in
the county borough. A piece of work is due to be commissioned by the SE
Wales local authorities to consider the future need for regional transit
provision, which could be utilised by any of the local authorities in the region.

6.0.5 Although, there is insufficient evidence to support the provision of a transit site
within the county borough the Council will, however, keep this decision under
close review. It will look to supplement the current evidence base by
proactively attempting to carry out accommodation needs surveys on all
unauthorised encampments that take place in the county borough in the
future, using Welsh Government’s universal questionnaire.

37
Page 61



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

6.0.6 Should any unexpected planning application for a permanent or transit site be
submitted in the future, this can be addressed through the existing planning
policies. The emerging 2" Replacement Local Development Plan will continue
to include a criteria-based policy to address any applications for Gypsy and
Traveller sites.

6.0.7 The Council remains supportive of Welsh Government leading on the
development of an all-Wales network of transit provision, something which
was discussed when the 2015 GTAA was being undertaken. Such an
initiative could potentially address the lack of current provision throughout
Wales and reduce the number of unauthorised encampments.

6.0.8 Section 5.2 showed there to be no identified need for plots for Travelling
Showpeople.
6.1 Next Steps

To ensure that the Council continues to comply with the requirements of Housing
(Wales) Act 2014 and the Equality Act 2010 the following steps will be undertaken:

1. Present the findings of the GTAA to Cabinet;
2. Submit the GTAA report to Welsh Government for approval;

3. Upload a copy of the Welsh Government approved GTAA report onto the
Council’'s website and review current website content;

4. Monitor the progress of each planning application for the 3 unauthorised
developments;

5. Ensure that all instances of unauthorised encampment in the county borough
are swiftly entered onto Welsh Government’s online caravan count system;

6. Continue to monitor the on-going accommodation requirements of members
of the Gypsy Traveller community through biannual meetings of the
accommodation working group;

7. Use the findings from the GTAA to inform the production of the 2"
Replacement Local Development Plan;

8. Carry out an amendment to the Common Housing Register to facilitate the
effective collection of data on the accommodation requirements of member of
the Gypsy and Traveller community;

9. Continue to actively participate in the All-Wales Gypsy & Traveller
Accommodation Forum;

10.Continue to actively participate in the SE Wales project looking at the future
needs for regional transit provision.

38
Page 62



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Appendix 1: Definition of Key Terms

The table below provides a list of key terms used in this document:

Gypsies and Travellers

(a) Persons of a nomadic habit of life, whatever their race
or origin, including:

(1) Persons who, on grounds only of their own or their
family’s or dependant’s educational or health needs or
old age, have ceased to travel temporarily or
permanently, and

(2) Members of an organized group of travelling show
people or circus people (whether or not travelling
together as such); and

(b) All other persons with a cultural tradition of nomadism
or of living in a mobile home.

Source: Section 108, Housing (Wales) Act 2014

Residential site

A permanent residential site can be privately owned or
owned by the Local Authority. This site will be designated
for use as a Gypsy and Traveller site indefinitely.
Residents on these sites can expect to occupy their
pitches for as long as they abide by the terms of their pitch
agreements, under the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013.
Working space may also be provided on, or near, sites for
activities carried out by community members.

Temporary residential
site

These sites are residential sites which only have planning
permission or a site licence for a limited period. Residents
on these sites can expect to occupy their pitches for the
duration of the planning permission or site licence (or as
long as they abide by the terms of their pitch agreements,
under the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013 — whichever is
sooner).

Transit site

Transit sites are permanent facilities designed for
temporary use by occupiers. These sites must be
designated as such and provide a route for Gypsies and
Travellers to maintain a nomadic way of life. Individual
occupiers are permitted to reside on the site for a
maximum of 3 months at a time.

Specific terms under the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013
apply on these sites. Working space may also be provided
on, or near, sites for activities carried out by community
members.

Residential pitch

Land on a mobile home site where occupiers are entitled
to station their mobile homes indefinitely (unless stated in
their pitch agreement). Typically includes an amenity
block, space for a static caravan and touring caravan and
parking.

Transit pitch

Land on a mobile home site where occupiers are entitled
to station their mobile homes for a maximum of 3 months.
Transit pitches can exist on permanent residential sites;
however, this is not recommended.

39
Page 63




DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Unauthorised Land occupied without the permission of the owner or

encampment without the correct land use planning permission.
Encampments may be tolerated by the Local Authority,
whilst alternative sites are developed.

Unauthorised Land occupied by the owner without the necessary land

development

use planning permission.

Current residential
supply

The number of authorised pitches which are available and
occupied within the Local Authority or partnership area.
This includes pitches on Local Authority or private sites.

Current residential
demand

Those with a need for authorised pitches for a range of

reasons, including:

¢ an inability to secure an authorised pitch leading to
occupation of unauthorised encampments;

e an inability to secure correct planning permission for
an unauthorised development;

¢ households living in overcrowded conditions and want
a pitch;

e households in conventional housing demonstrating
cultural aversion;

e new households expected to arrive from elsewhere.

Future residential
demand

The expected level of new household formation which will
generate additional demand within the 5-year period of
the accommodation assessment and longer LDP period.

Overall residential pitch
need

The ultimate calculation of unmet accommodation needs
which must be identified through the Gypsy and Traveller
accommodation assessment process. This figure can be
found by adding the immediate residential need to the
future residential demand. The overall residential need
will capture the needs across the 5-year period within
which the accommodation assessment is considered to
be robust.

Planned residential
pitch supply

The number of authorised pitches which are vacant and
available to rent on Local Authority or private sites. It also
includes pitches which will be vacated in the near future
by households moving to conventional housing or in other
circumstances. Additional pitches which are due to open
or private sites likely to achieve planning permission
shortly should be included as planned residential supply.

Household

In this guidance this refers to individuals from the same
family who live together on a single pitch / house /
encampment.

Concealed or ‘doubled-
up’ household

This refers to households which are unable to achieve
their own authorised accommodation and are instead
living within authorised accommodation (houses or
pitches) assigned to another household.

This may include adult children who have been unable to
move home or different households occupying a single
pitch.

40
Page 64




DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Household growth

In this guidance household growth is defined by the
number of new households arising from households which
are already accommodated in the area.

Temporary Stopping
Place

Also known as a ‘stopping place’, ‘Atchin Tan’, or ‘green
lane’, amongst other names. These are intended to be
short-term in nature to assist Local Authorities where a
need for pitches is accepted, however, none are currently
available. Pro-actively identified temporary stopping
places can be used to relocate inappropriately located
encampments, whilst alternative sites are progressed.
Temporary stopping places must make provision for waste
disposal, water supply and sanitation at a minimum.

41
Page 65




DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Appendix 2: Survey Poster

Bilingual Poster

Traveller Survey:
Your Future, Your Say

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014
means that Councils must assess and
make provision for the accommodation
needs of Gypsies & Travellers in their area.

The Council would like to speak with all Gypsies & Travellers
living in the borough to find out whether your family
requires a residential pitch or a yard.

(83/1

To speak with the Council, please telephone 01443 811380,

email: stratanddevelop@caerphilly.gov.uk
or visit one of its main buildings.

2021 Arolwg Sipsiwn
a Theithwyr:

Eich Dyfodol, Eich Barn

Mae deddf newydd o'r enw Deddf Tai (Cymru)
2014 yn golygu fod rhaid i Gynghorau asesu
a gwneud darpariaeth ar gyfer anghenion
llety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr yn eu hardal.
Hoffair Cyngor siarad &' holl Sipsiwn a'r Teithwyr sy'n
byw yn y fwrdeistref i ddarganfod os oes angen llain
breswyl neu iard ar eich teulu.

%V\?gf dEE

1 siarad &'r Cyngor, ffoniwch 01443 811380,
e-bostiwch: stratanddevelop@caerphilly.gov.uk
neu ewch i un o'r prif adeiladau.

42

Page 66



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Appendix 3: Survey Flyer

English Version Poster

2021 Gypsy & Traveller

sSurvey: Your Future, Your Say

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 means that
Councils must assess and make provision for the
accommodation needs of Gypsies & Travellers in their area.

The Council would like to speak with all Gypsies and Travellers living in the borough
to find out whether your family requires a residential pitch or a yard.

To speak with the Council, please telephone 01443 811380,
email: stratanddevelop@caerphilly.gov.uk or visit one of its main buildings.

sssss

Welsh Version Poster

2021 Arolwg Sipsiwn a
Theithwyr: Eich Dyfodol, Eich Barn

Mae deddf newydd o'r enw Deddf Tai (Cymru) 2014 yn golygu
fod rhaid i Gynghorau asesu a gwneud darpariaeth ar gyfer
anghenion llety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr yn eu hardal.
Hoffai'r Cyngor siarad a’r holl Sipsiwn a'r Teithwyr sy’'n byw yn y fwrdeistref i
ddarganfod os oes angen llain breswyl neu iard ar eich teulu.

T P AN a7 n

g o I o q) @E]D
-

% }D» 3 q \“(” \?V

1 siarad &'r Cyngor, ffoniwch 01443 811380,
e-bostiwch: stratanddevelop@caerphilly.gov.uk neu ewch i un o'r prif adeiladau.

43
Page 67



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Appendix 4: A List of Organisations Consulted

Below is a list, in no particular order, of the main organisations or groups that the
Council has communicated with as part of the undertaking of the GTAA:
Gypsies & Travellers Wales

Travelling Ahead (at Save the Children Cymru)

The Unity Project

Romani Cultural and Arts Company

The Bridges Project

The Showmen’s Guild of Great Britain

The Travellers School Charity

One Voice for Travellers

The Traveller Movement

Friends, Families and Travellers

The National Federation of Gypsy Liaison Groups

The Gypsy Council (for Education, Culture, Welfare and Civil Rights)
Roma Support Group

Travellers Times

Gwent Police

Welsh Government

Page 68



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Appendix 5: Interview Log

Questionnaire

Address Type of Da‘tetof Engagement techniques used Resident Interview attempts completed or Reasons for
tenure visit at home? refusal?
refusal?

Caravan Park A Private 15/07/2021| Two members of the project team visited |N/a N/a N/a N/a N/a Interviews were
renting the caravan park. The primary purpose only undertaken

of the visit was to raise awareness of the following a request
GTAA project and answer any questions. from a resident.
It was not at this stage the intention to No requests for
undertake a survey. We knew from the interview were
previous assessment that members of the received at this
Gyspy Traveller community resided at location.

this site. Where the resident was at

home, basis information was provided

and a flyer was handed out. Where the

resident was not at home, a flyer was

posted through their letterbox. Surveys

would only be undertaken following a

request from residents.

Caravan Park B Private 15/07/2021 | Two members of the project team visited |N/a N/a N/a N/a N/a Interviews were

renting the caravan park. The primary purpose only undertaken
of the visit was to raise awareness of the following a request
GTAA project and answer any questions. from a resident.
It was not at this stage the intention to No requests for
undertake a survey. We knew from the interview were
previous assessment that members of the received at this
Gyspy Traveller community resided at location.
this site. Where the resident was at
home, basis information was provided
and a flyer was handed out. Where the
resident was not at home, a flyer was
posted through their letterbox. Surveys
would only be undertaken following a
request from residents.

Caravan Park C Private 15/07/2021| Two members of the project team visited |N/a N/a N/a N/a N/a Interviews were

ownership the caravan park. The primary purpose only undertaken
of the visit was to raise awareness of the following a request
GTAA project and answer any questions. from a resident.
It was not at this stage the intention to No requests for
undertake a survey. We knew from the interview were
previous assessment that members of the received at this
Gyspy Traveller community resided at location.
this site. Where the resident was at
home, basis information was provided
and a flyer was handed out. Where the
resident was not at home, a flyer was
posted through their letterbox. Surveys
would only be undertaken following a
request from residents.

Site A Unauthori |15/07/2021| Two member of the project team visited  |Yes 15/09/2021 Completed N/a
sed the unauthorised development to speak
developm with the residents. The primary purpose
ent of the visit was to raise awareness about

the GTAA process. Due to Covid-19
protocols in place at the time of this visit it
was not possbile to carry out face-to-face
interviews. Where the resident indicated
they were willing to complete an interview
arrangements were made to visit the site
at a later date.

Site B Unauthori |15/07/2021| Two member of the project team visited  |Yes 11/10/2021 Completed N/a
sed the unauthorised development to speak
developm with the residents. The primary purpose
ent of the visit was to raise awareness about

the GTAA process. Due to Covid-19
protocols in place at the time of this visit it
was not possbile to carry out face-to-face
interviews. Where the resident indicated
they were willing to complete an interview
arrangements were made to visit the site
at a later date.

Site C Unauthori |15/07/2021|Two member of the project team visited |Yes 15/09/2021| 11/10/2021| 11/11/2021 |Refused The residents at
sed the unauthorised development to speak this site initially
developm with the residents. The primary purpose agreed to
ent of the visit was to raise awareness about complete an

the GTAA process. Due to Covid-19 interview but
protocols in place at the time of this visit it subsequently

was not possbile to carry out face-to-face changed their
interviews. Where the resident indicated minds. No specific
they were willing to complete an interview reason was
arrangements were made to visit the site provided for this

at a later date. change.

Page 69

45



0/ abed

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Appendix 6: 2011 Census Data Regional Analysis

Variable Caerphilly Bridgend Vale of Glamorgan Cardiff Rhondda Cynon Taff Blaenau Gwent Torfaen Monmouthshire Newport
All residents Gypsy/Irish travellers| Gypsy/Irish travellers| Gypsy/Irish travellers| Gypsy/lrish travellers| Gypsy/Irish travellers| Gypsy/Irish travellers| Gypsy/Irish travellers| Gypsy/Irish travellers: Gypsy/Irish travellers

Number %__Number % __Number % __Number % ___Number %;___Number % __Number %;___Number % __Number % ___Number %
All usual residents 178,806 31 63] 21 521 53 72 155 6 84
Aged 0-17 years 39,691 22.20 5 16.13 15! 23.81 5. 23.81 246 47.20 13! 24.53 28 38.89 80 51.61 0. 0.00: 31! 36.90
Aged 18-39 years 48,800 27.29 8 25.81 26 41.27 13 61.90 167, 32.05; 27 50.94 25 34.72 30, 19.35 4 66.67 30! 35.71
Aged 40-64 years 60,750 33.98 18 58.06 21 33.33 3 14.29; 92 17.66 11 20.75, 12 16.67 36! 23.23 2 33.33 18 21.43
Aged 65 years and over 29,565 16.53 0 0.00 1 1.59] 0 0.00! 16 3.07; 2 3.77 7 9.72 9 5.81 0, 0.00: 5 5.95
Male usual residents 87,701 16, 37 14 253 28 35 70, 4 42
Males aged 0-17 years 20,338 23.19 2 12.50 7 18.92 2 14.29 128 50.59 2 7.14 16 45.71 49 70.00 0 0.00: 14/ 33.33
Males aged 18-39 years 24,062 27.44 2 12.50 17 45.95 10 71.42 87 34.39 19 67.86 10 28.57 4 5.71 3, 75.00 17! 40.48
Males aged 40-64 years 30,060 34.27 12 75.00 12 32.43 2 14.29 32 12.65; 6 21.43 6 17.14 13 18.57 1 25.00 8 19.05
Males aged 65 years and over 13,241 15.10 0 0.00 1 2.70] 0 0.00! 6 2.37 1 3.57 3 2.86 4 5.71 0. 0.00: 3 7.14
Female usual residents 91,105 15! 26 7 268 25 37 85 2 42
Females aged 0-17 years 19,353 21.24 3 20.00 8 30.77 3 42.86 118 44.03 11 44.00 12 32.43 31 36.47 0, 0.00: 17! 40.48
Females aged 18-39 years 24,738 27.15 6 40.00 9 34.61 3 42.86 80 29.85 8 32.00 15 40.54 26 30.59 1 50.00 13 30.95,
Females aged 40-64 years 30,690 33.69 6 40.00 9 34.61 1 14.28 60 22.39 5 20.00: 6 16.22 23] 27.06 1 50.00 10 23.81
Females aged 65 years and over 16,324 17.92 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00! 10 3.73 1 4.00 4 10.81 5| 5.88! 0 0.00: 2 4.76
All usual residents aged 16+ 143,825 26 49 16 308 41 44 81 6 56
Economically active residents aged 16+ 85,212 59.25 8 30.77 32 65.31 3 18.75 87 28.25 27! 65.85 14! 31.82 16! 19.75 4 66.67 27! 48.21
% of economically active residents aged 16+ who are:
Employed part-time 17,378 12.08 1 3.85 8 16.33] 1 6.25] 12 3.90! 7 17.07. 2 4.55 4 4.94 1 16.67. 6 10.71
Employed full-time 50,275 34.96 5 19.23 7 14.29 1 6.25; 30! 9.74 9 21.94 6 13.63 4 4.94 2 33.33 6 10.71
Self employed 7,966 5.54 2 7.69. 4 8.16 1 6.25 14 4.55 5 12.20 2 4.55 3 3.70! 0. 0.00: 8 14.29
Full-time students 2,852 1.98 0 0.00: 2 4.08 0 0.00: 9 2.91 3 7.32 0 0.00 0 0.00 1 16.67 2 3.57.
Unemployed 6,741 4.69 0 0.00; 11 22.45 0 0.00! 22 7.14 3 7.32 4 9.09 5 6.17 0, 0.00: 5 8.93
Economically inactive residents aged 16+ 58,613 40.75 18 69.23 17 34.69 13 81.25 221 71.75 14 34.15 30 68.18 65 80.25 2 33.33 29 51.79
% of economically inactive residents aged 16+ who are:
Retired 32,775 22.79 1 3.85. 1 2.04; 1 6.25 13! 4.23 0 0.00: 6 13.64 10! 12.35 0. 0.00: 5 8.93.
Students 5,901 4.10 0 0.00 1 2,04 6 37.50 26 8.44 1 2.44 0 0.00! 5 6.17 0 0.00 5 8.93
Looking after home or family 5,681 3.95. 4 15.38 4 8.16 2 12.50 61! 19.80 1 2.44 11 25.00 30, 37.04 1 16.67 5 8.93
Long term sick or disabled 11,130 17.74 11 42.31 1 2.04 3 18.75 71 23.05 7 17.07 6 13.64 13 16.05 0, 0.00: 12! 21.42
Other 3,126 217 2 7.69 10 20.41 1 6.25] 50 16.23 5 12.20 7 15.90; 7 8.64 1 16.67. 2 3.58
Male usual residents aged 16+ 69,692 14 31 12! 144 26! 19 24 4 31!
iEconomically active males aged 16+ 45,302 65.00 6 42.86 21 67.74 3 25.00 46 31.94 16! 61.54 9 47.37 8 33.33 3 75.00 16! 51.61
% of economically active males aged 16+ who are:
Employed part-time 3,604 5.17. 0 0.00 5 16.13; 1 8.33] 2 1.39 2 7.69 0 0.00 1 4.17 0 0.00! 2 6.45)
Employed full-time 30,313 43.50 4 28.57 5. 16.13 1 8.33; 22! 15.28 6 23.08 4 21.05 2 8.33 2. 50.00 1 3.22
Self employed 6,002 8.61 2 14.29 2 6.45 1 8.33! 13! 9.02 5 19.23 2 10.53 3 12.50 0 0.00: 8 25.81
Full-time students 1,115 1.60 0 0.00: 2 6.45; 0. 0.00: 1 0.69: 2 7.69. 0 0.00 0 0.00 1 25.00 0 0.00:
Unemployed 4,268 6.12 0 0.00: 7 22.58 0 0.00! 8 5.56 1 3.85. 3 15.79 2 8.33 0. 0.00: 5 16.13
Economically inactive males aged 16+ 24,390 35.00. 8 57.14 10 32.26 9 75.00 98 68.06 10 38.46 10, 52.63 16, 66.67, 1 25.00 15 48.38
% of economically inactive males aged 16+ who are:
Retired 13,863 19.89 1 7.14 1 3.23 1 8.33; 7 4.86 0 0.00: 3 15.79 2 8.33 0. 0.00: 3 9.68
Students 2,819 4.04 0 0.00: 0 0.00 4 33.34 20! 13.89 1 3.85. 0 0.00 3] 12.50 0 0.00: 3 9.68
Looking after home or family 779 1.12 1 7.14 1 3.23; 0. 0.00: 9 6.25. (9] 0.00: 1 5.26 0 0.00 0. 0.00: 1 3.23
Long term sick or disabled 5,650 8.11 6 42.86 1 3.23 3 25.00 33 22.92 5 19.23 4 21.05 7 29.17, 0, 0.00: 7 22.58
Other 1,279 1.84] 0 0.00 7 22.57 1 8.33] 29 20.14 4 15.38 2 10.53 4 16.67 1 25.00 1 3.23

46



T/ obed

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Variable Caerphilly Bridgend Vale of Glamorgan Cardiff Rhondda Cynon Taff Blaenau Gwent Torfaen Monmouthshire Newport
All residents Gypsy/Irish travellers| Gypsy/Irish travellersi Gypsy/Irish travellersi Gypsy/lrish travellers Gypsy/lrish travellers: Gypsy/Irish travellers: Gypsy/Irish travellers: Gypsy/Irish travellers: Gypsy/Irish travellers

Number %j__Number %j__Number %;j__Number % __Number %, _Number % __Number % _Number % __Number % _Number %
Female usual residents aged 16+ 74,133 12 18 4 164 15 25 57 2 25
Economically active females aged 16+ 39,910 53.84. 2 16.67. 11 61.11 0 0.00 41 25.00 11 73.33 5 20.00; 8 14.04 1 50.00: 11 44
% of economically active females aged 16+ who are:
Employed part-time 13,774 18.58 1 8.33 3 16.67 0 0.00 10 6.10! 5 33.33 2 8.00! 3 5.26 1 50.00: 4 16.00
Employed full-time 19,962, 26.93 1 8.33 2 1111 o) 0.00; 8| 4.88] 3 20.00; 0 8.00 2 3.52 0 0.00 5 20.00
Self employed 1,964 2.65 0 0.00! 2 11.11 0 0.00 1 0.61 0 0.00 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Full-time students 1,737 2.34 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 8 4.88 1 6.67 [8) 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 2 8.00
Unemployed 2,473 3.34 0 0.00! 4 22.22 0; 0.00 14 8.53 2 13.33; 1 4.00 3 5.26 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Economically inactive females aged 16+ 34,223 46.16 10 83.33 7 38.88 4 100.00; 123 75.00 4 26.67 20 80.00 49! 85.96. 1 50.00: 14 56
% of economically inactive females aged 16+ who are:
Retired 18,912 25.51 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0; 0.00 6 3.66 0 0.00 3 12.00: 8 14.03 0 0.00! 2 8.00!
Students 3,082 4.16 0 0.00! 1 5.56 2 50.00 6 3.66 0 0.00 0 0.00: 2 3.51 0 0.00! 2 8.00!
Looking after home or family. 4,902 6.61 3 25.00: 3 16.67 2 50.00: 52 31.71 1 6.67 10 40.00 30 52.63 1 50.00: 4 16.00
Long term sick or disabled 5,480 7.39 5 41.66 0 0.00! 0; 0.00 38 23.17 2 13.33! 2 8.00 6 10.53; 0 0.00! 5 20.00:
Other 1,847 2.49 2 16.67. 3 16.67 0; 0.00 21 12.80; 1 6.67] 5 20.00; 3 5.26 0 0.00! 1 4.00
All usual residents aged 16+ in employment by industry: 77,756 8 20 3 63! 24 10 11 4 21
Agriculture, energy & water 2,051 2.64 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00 3 4.76 1 4.17 1 10.00: 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Manufacturing 12,573 16.17, 0 0.00! 2 10.00: 0 0.00 6 9.52 2 8.33 3 30.00: 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 2 9.52
Construction 6,650 8.55 0 0.00! 3 15.00 1 33.33 9 14.29: 2 8.33! 0 0.00:! 2 18.18 0 0.00! 2 9.52
Wholesale & retail trade; repair of motor vehicles/motorcycles 11,750 15.11 2 25.00 3 15.00 0 0.00:! 6 9.52 4 16.67 0 0.00 2 18.18 0 0.00 5 23.81
Transport & storage 3,034 3.90 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00 3 4.76 1 4.17 0 0.00! 2 18.18 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Accommodation & food senvice activities 3,409 4.38 0 0.00! 4 20.00: 0; 0.00 7 11.11 1 4.17 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Information & communication 1,495 1.92 1 12.50 0 0.00! 0] 0.00 1 1.59] 0 0.00 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 1 4.76
Financial & insurance activities 2,720 3.50! 0 0.00! 1 5.00! 0; 0.00 1 1.59] 2 8.33 0 0.00:! 1 9.09! 0 0.00! 2 9.52
Real estate activities 843 1.08 1 12.50; 0 0.00! 0; 0.00 1 1.59] 0 0.00 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Professional, scientific & technical activities 2,934 3.77 1 12.50 0 0.00: 0 0.00: 2 3.17 1 4.17 1 10.00 o] 0.00: 0. 0.00: 1 4.76
Administrative & support senice activities 3,490 4.49 0 0.00 2 10.00 1 33.33 5 7.94 2 8.33 2 20.00 0 0.00 1 25.00 1 4.76
Public administration & defence; compulsory social security 7,102 9.13. 2. 25.00 0 0.00: 1 33.33 3 4.76 1 4.17 0 0.00: 0 0.00: 1 25.00 1 4.76
Education 7,097 9.13 0 0.00 1 5.00 o) 0.00} 3 4.76) 2 8.33 1 10.00 1 9.09 0 0.00 2 9.52
Human health & social work activities 9,653 12.41 1 12.50: 2 10.00 0; 0.00 7 11.11 4 16.67 0 0.00! 2 18.18 1 25.00: 2 9.52
Other industries 2,955 3.80 0 0.00 2 10.00: 0; 0.00! 6 9.52 1 4.17 2 20.00: 1 9.09! 1 25.00: 2 9.52
All usual residents aged 16+ and highest level of qualification: 143,825 26 49 16 308 41 44 81 6 56
No qualifications 45,102 31.36 16 61.54. 26 53.06 6 37.50! 207 67.21 19 46.34 33 75.00: 65 80.25! 2 33.33 38 67.86
Level 1 qualifications 21,459 14.92 0 0.00! 6 12.25 0; 0.00 26 8.44 6 14.63; 2 4.54 5 6.17 0 0.00! 3 5.36
Level 2 qualifications 23,361 16.24 0 0.00! 6 12.25 3 18.75 20 6.49] 3 7.32] 4 9.09! 4 4.94 2 33.33 2 3.57
Apprenticeship 5,595 3.89 1 3.85 0 0.00! 1 6.25 5 1.62 2 4.88 1 2.27 1 1.23 0 0.00! 2 3.57
Level 3 gualifications 16,154 11.23 3 11.54 4 8.16 3 18.75 19 6.17 3 7.32] 0 0.00! 1 1.23 1 16.67 5 8.93
Level 4 qualifications and above 26,843 18.66! 6 23.08! 4; 8.16 1 6.25] 23 7.47 6 14.63 1 2.27 4 4.94 1 16.67; 5 8.93
Other qualifications 5,311 3.69' 0 0.00! 3 6.12 2 12.50; 8 2.60! 2 4.88 3 6.82 1 1.23 0 0.00! 1 1.78
All usual residents and general health 178,806 31 63 21 521 53 72 155 6] 84
Very good or good 133,654 74.75 14 45.16 45 71.43 16 76.19 330 63.34 36 67.92 49 68.06 105, 67.74 6 100.00 58 69.05
Fair 28,488 15.93 7 22.58 11 17.46 3 14.29 92 17.66 12 22.64 11 15.28 23 14.84 0 0.00! 14 16.67
Bad or very bad 16,664 9.32 10 32.26 7 11.11 2 9.52 99 19.00 5 9.43 12 16.67 27 17.42 0 0.00! 12 14.28
All usual residents and religion: 178,806 31 63 21 521 53! 72 155! 6 84
Christian 90,669 50.71 17 54.84 29 46.03 8 38.09. 400! 76.77 21! 39.62 53 73.61 126 81.29 2 33.33, 43 51.19
Buddhist 278 0.15! 1 3.23 1 1.59 1 4.76 4 0.77 2 3.77] 0 0.00; 0 0.00; 0 0.00! 1 1.19
Hindu 174 0.10 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 2 0.38 0] 0.00 o) 0.00 [8) 0.00 [o) 0.00 0 0.00
Jewish 69 0.04' 1 3.23 0 0.00! 0; 0.00 0; 0.00 1 1.89] 0 0.00; 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 1 1.19
Muslim 391 0.22 0 0.00 2 3.17 0] 0.00] 6 115 1 1.89 0 0.00 1 0.64 0 0.00 1 119
Sikh 152 0.08! 1 3.23 0 0.00! 0; 0.00 3; 0.58 1 1.89] 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Other religion 665, 0.37 2 6.45 0 0.00! 0; 0.00 9 1.73] 2 3.77 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
No religion 73,084/ 40.87 9 29.03 21 33.33 6 28.57. 72 13.82 20 37.74 9 12.50: 23 14.84 2 33.33 26 30.95
Religion not stated 13,324 7.45 0 0.00! 10 15.87 6 28.57. 25 4.80 5 9.43! 10 13.89; 5 3.23 2 33.33 12 14.29

47



2/ obed

DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Variable

Caer|

hilly

Bridgend

Vale of Glamorgan

Cardiff

Rhondda Cynon Taff

Blaenau Gwent

Torfaen

Monmouthshire

Newport

All residents Gypsy/Irish travellers| Gypsy/Irish travellersi Gypsy/Irish travellers| Gypsy/lrish travellers| Gypsy/lrish travellers: Gypsy/Irish travellers: Gypsy/Irish travellers: Gypsy/Irish travellers: Gypsy/Irish travellers
Number %|__Number % __Number %;__Number % __Number %, _Number % __Number % _Number % __Number % _Number %
Household composition (nhumber of households) 74,479 14 26 6 158 22 30! 50 3 28
Single person aged 65+ households 9,143 12.29: 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 5 3.16 0 0.00 5 16.67 1 2.00] 0 0.00! 2 7.14
Households containing only residents aged 65+ (more than one) 6,161 8.27 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 1 0.63 0 0.00 1 3.33 2 4.00 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Single person households 11,053 14.84 8 57.14 6 23.08 0 0.00 34 21.52 5 22.73 8 26.67 9 18.00: 1 33.33; 6 21.43
Married/same-sex civil partnership couple households with:
no children 9,737, 13.07. 1 7.14 1 3.85 0 0.00 2 1.27 2 9.09; 1 3.33 3 6.00! 0 0.00! 1 3.57
dependent children 11,025 14.80: 1 7.14 3 11.54 0 0.00! 15 9.49 1 4.54 3 10.00: 4 8.00! 1 33.33 6 21.43
all children non-dependent 5,687 7.64 2 14.29 3 11.54 1 16.70 4 2.53 1 4.54 0 0.00! 1 2.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Cohabiting couple households with:
no children 3,435 4.61 1 7.14 1 3.85 0 0.00! 5 3.16 2 9.09! 0 0.00! 1 2.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
dependent children 4,282 5.75 0 0.00! 2 7.69 3 50.00: 7 4.43 5 22.73 1 3.33] 3 6.00! 0 0.00! 1 3.57
all children non-dependent 495 0.66 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 1 0.63 0 0.00 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 0 0.00!
Lone parent households with:
dependent children 6,533 8.77 1 7.14 7 26.92 1 16.70 55 34.82 5 22.73 8 26.67. 18 36.00: 0 0.00! 7 25.00:
. all children non-dependent 3,141 4.22 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 1 16.70 4 2.53 0 0.00 2 6.67 0 0.00! 0 0.00! 1 3.57
Other households 3,787 5.08! 0 0.00! 3 11.53 0 0.00! 25 15.83 1 4.54 1 3.33 8 16.00: 1 33.33 4: 14.29
Car/van availability (number of households) 74,479 14 26 6 158 22 30! 50 3 28
No cars or vans 18,137 24.35 3 21.43 7 26.92 1 16.67 90 56.96 6 27.28 15 50.00: 18 36.00; 0 0.00! 10, 35.71
1 car or van 32,153 43.17 7 50.00: 13 50.00: 4 66.66! 52 32.91 8 36.36 11 36.67 24 48.00 1 33.33 10 35.71
2 or more cars and vans 24,189 32.48 4 28.57. 6 23.08 1 16.67 16 10.13 8 36.36 4 13.33; 8 16.00; 2 66.67. 8 28.58

The 2011 Census tables used for the above analysis are as follows:

DC2101EW
DC6201EW
DC5209EW
DC6211EW
DC2301EW
DC2201EW
DC1201EW
DC4202EW

Ethnic group by sex and age
Economic activity by ethnic group by sex by age
Highest level of qualification by ethnic group
Industry by ethnic group by age

Ethnic group by provision of unpaid care by general health
Ethnic group by religion
Household composition by ethnic group of Household Reference Person
Tenure by car or van availability by ethnic group of Household Reference Person

48



DRAFT 2022-2027 GYPSY TRAVELLER ACCOMMODATION ASSESSMENT

Appendix 7: Analysis of unauthorised encampments (2011-2015)

Year / Month Duration of stay Location Number of
caravans
May 2011 Not recorded "Dead End Spur", Manmoel Road, Pen-y- 3
Fan
August 2011 Not recorded Old North Celenyn Pit Site, Newbridge Not recorded
December 2012 | Not recorded Caerphilly Park & Ride 5
January 2013 6 days Caerphilly Park & Ride Not recorded
March 2013 Not recorded Caerphilly Park & Ride 5
June2013 Not recorded Caerphilly Park & Ride 3
June 2013 Not recorded Caerphilly Park & Ride 3
July 2013 Not recorded Wern Car Park, Nelson 3
July 2013 4 days Leisure Centre, Risca 13
August 2013 14 days Foxes Lane, Oakdale 7
June 2014 Not recorded Rear of Asda, Caerphilly 1
July 2014 Not recorded Caerphilly railway top Car Park (land 6
belongs to Network rail)
August 2014 7 days Oakdale Wind Farm, Oakdale Business 20
Park
October 2014 14 days Aber Railway Station, Nantgarw Road, 6
Caerphilly
October 2014 Owner gave Gellideg Lane, Maesycwmmer (private 1 caravan and 2
permission to stay land) converted vans
for approx. 6 weeks
January 2015 6 days Car Park Aber Alt Railway Station, 5
Nantgarw Road Caerphilly
July 2015 Not recorded Oakdale Wind Farm, Oakdale Business 5
Park
August 2015 4 days Top of Heol Fawr, Nelson 6
September 2015 | 2 days Risca Railway Station 2
October 2015 7 days Caerphilly railway top car park (Network 7

Rail)

Source: Caerphilly CBC, GTAA 2015

Page 73

49




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



	Agenda
	3 Pwyllgor Craffu Tai ac Adfywio a gynhaliwyd ar 15fed Mawrth 2022.
	5 Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor Craffu Tai ac Adfywio.
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3

	7 Asesiad o Lety i Sipsiwn a Theithwyr 2022-27.
	Atodiad 1


